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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ("Year”), the
Group's revenue from the continuing operations amounted
to approximately HK$654.84 million (2015: HK$785.70
million), representing a decrease of 16.66% over last year.
Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
was approximately HK$66.87 million (2015: HK$10.62
million). The profit (net of tax) from continuing operations
was approximately HK$8.58 million (2015: loss (net of tax)
from continuing operations was HK$41.86 million). Profit
attributable to owners of the parent was approximately
HK$7.22 million (2015: HK$19.41 million). The profit for
the Year was mainly because the rental business segment
and money lending business segment become mature and
the profit in 2015 was mainly due to the gain arose from
the disposal of BAPP (Northwest) Limited. Earnings per share
from continuing operations and discontinued operations for
the Year was HKO0.15 cents (2015: HK0.51 cents).

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus on
existing resources to further strengthen and grow the Group's
businesses both organically and through acquisitions when
appropriate opportunities arise. The Group also plans to
diversify the business mix and will seek for good investment
opportunity with major focus in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong. Diversifications would
be carefully selected among all the choices we explored and
would be operated with experienced business partners.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group's wine and liquor business is principally engaged
in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the PRC.
Currently, the Group operates a retail and distribution
network for selling wine and liquor in Guangzhou, Harbin
and Hunan Province of the PRC. The Group has 8 wine and
liquor specialty stores and 19 franchise stores in Guangzhou.

The Group is the exclusive distributor of Diancang Jiugui and
Meiming Wenshi in the PRC until May 2020.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Since 2012, the revenue of this business segment has
been hit by the PRC government’s calls for cracking down
on extravagance in government departments and state-
owned institutions and enterprises as well as the plasticiser
contamination scandal. The operating environment of the
liquor industry in the PRC remained difficult during the
Year. The Group will closely monitor the market situations
and trends and adopt corresponding measures of risk
management to alleviate the negative impacts. Meanwhile,
the Group will continue to improve the product mix and
focus on higher margin products to grow its business. Apart
from strengthening the established markets, the Group will
strive to expand its retail and distribution network to other
parts of the PRC.

Due to the government policy, revenue of the wine and liquor
business declined by 8.63% to approximately HK$42.66
million (2015: HK$46.69 million) during the Year, accounting
for 6.51% (2015: 5.94%) of the total revenue. Gross profit
of this business segment was approximately HK$5.66 million
(2015: HK$6.71 million), representing a decrease of 15.65%
from last year.

Sales of Green Food Products Business

The sales of green food products business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$296.29 million (2015: HK$727.29
million), accounting for 45.25% of the total revenue.
Gross profit of this business segment for the Year was
approximately HK$3.22 million (2015: HK$4.15 million).

Rental of Logistic Facilities and Office Facilities Business
The logistic facilities and office facilities renting business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$59.13 million (2015:
HK$9.53 million), accounting for 9.03% of the total revenue.
Gross profit of this business segment for the Year was
approximately HK$27.46 million (2015: Gross loss HK$2.43
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Money Lending Business

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in the PRC is engaged in the money lending business in the
PRC. The money lending business recorded a revenue of
HK$24.80 million (2015: HK$2.19 million), accounting for
3.79% of the total revenue. Gross profit of this business
segment for the Year was approximately HK$24.80 million
(2015: HK$2.19 million).

Construction Business

On 1 March 2016, Shenzhen Penda Rongtong Trading
Limited* CRYIT IS ZRUBEHE AR 27, "SZPD"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the First Share Transfer Agreement with the owner of
Shenzhen Tronsin llluminating Technique Limited* (%317 &l
FRRBARHE AR A F], “SZTI") which is principally engaged in
the sales of lighting equipment and urban and road lighting
engineering contracting. The owner of SZTI has conditionally
agreed to sell 51% equity interest in SZTI to the Group at a
consideration of RMB35 million.

On 1 March 2016, SZPD entered into the Second Share
Transfer Agreement with the owner of Fujian Fang Run
Construction Group Company Limited* ({f&# %4 7 EE &R E
E AR A A, “FIFR") which is principally engaged in general
construction contracting for housing and building projects
and general construction contracting for municipal public
projects. The owner of FJFR has conditionally agreed to sell
51% equity interest in FJFR to the Group at a consideration of
RMB50 million.

The First Share Transfer Agreement and the Second Share
Transfer Agreement are not interconditional upon one
another. On 24 March 2016, the completion of the First
Share Transfer Agreement and the Second Share Transfer
Agreement took place and SZTI and FJFR have become
the subsidiaries of the Group, and henceforth the Group
becomes eligible to participate in the construction projects.
Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 23 October 2015, 17
December 2015 and 1 March 2016. Through participating
in the construction projects, the Group derived a revenue of
approximately HK$231.97 million (2015: Nil) and accounted
for 35.42% (2015: Nil) of the total revenue from the
execution of the contractual works contemplated under
the construction projects and the provision of ongoing
maintenance services in relation to the construction projects
during the Year.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Acquisitions

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 1 March 2016, SZPD, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the First
Share Transfer Agreement and the Second Share
Transfer Agreement with the owner of SZTI and FJFR
respectively. The Group has conditionally agreed to
acquire from both of the vendors 51% equity interest
in SZTI and FJFR at a consideration of RMB35 million
and RMB50 million respectively.

Completion of the two agreements took place on
24 March 2016. Accordingly, SZTI and FJFR have
become indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company and their results will be consolidated
into the financial statements of the Company. Details
of the above transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 23 October
2015, 17 December 2015 and 1 March 2016.

On 15 August 2016, Shenzhen Beisiluo Trading Co.,
Ltd* ORIITTEETZERME AR 2 A)), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a share transfer agreement with the owner of
Zhongshan Minzhong Waterytown Travel Co., Ltd*
(FRILTRBKBEFEER AR, “ZSMZ") to acquire
70% equity interest in ZSMZ at a consideration of
RMB46 million. ZSMZ held trademarks of Lingnan
Watertown and is principally engaged in tourism
business.

On 1 October 2016, Shenzhen Bichang Trading Co.,
Ltd* ORIIBHE S ER A7), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
share transfer agreement with the owner of Shenzhen
Zhenhe Investment and Development Co., Ltd* (&
JImBEMKEERBR AR, “SZZH") to acquire
100% equity interest in SZZH at a consideration of
RMB48 million. SZZH held 55% equity interest in each
of the three subsidiaries in Beijing which are Beijing
Chuangzhan Gudesheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd* (I REEAEBREEEARA
7)), Beijing Chuangzhan Guwangxin Investment
Management Co., Ltd* (St REIRAEFH IR EERH
fR 2 &]) and Beijing Mumian Shangyuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd* (LR AR LTI EERBR
/A@]) . The principal activities of SZZH group is renting
of office premises and facilities.

*  For identification purposes only

EEENWRE DM

Wi R L EH B AT

WiE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ES

R-ZT—XNFZA—B FIIEERE
(BARAIzHE2EMBRART) HHIHE
FINBISCRB R BER B 2B AL
E—REEERERE _HRESEE
E - AEEDERGREBEFIKE
HRNFRYIBI 5 RRA AR B 251%8
1 R {E 5 Rl A AKR¥35,000,0007T &
AR #50,000,0007T ©

ZMOBEER T ANEZA =1+
H5Em - Bt RYNBILRB KBRS
BEKARRRZMEEZEH B AR
REEBBEZRETARQRZ M HR
T FMRGZHBEBENRAAR AL
A-ZEZ-—RFE+A-+=B--ZF—1
F+-_A++tER-ZE-—XRE=A—H
/N (i

RZE—ARENA+EB  FIITEE
BEBEERAR (ARazMEE2EW
BAR)HEPILUTRIKBERR QA
(TRWRR]) 2B AFT LR R
HUWERILRR70%E - REABA
K #46,000,000c- R ILRERFHEE
KBEERFBWEREER -

R-ZZE—XF+A—RB FINBBESH
ERAR (ARRlzEE2ENBAR)
ERYTTEMEEERBR AR ([F
M) 2B AFT LR e e A
BB RIIZEF100% A E  REBARE
48,000,0007T < A I BHEFFAE =Hit =
MEAR (Bt REIRAEBREERE
BRARIERERAEHIREETES
RARRILRAIB L TREERBRA
A]) & B55% M  RXIENER 22
ENAEHRERNDENEE-

EH#T

FEEAREXEEZERERA T
2016 &£ 3§

7




8

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

(iv)  Subsequent to the end of the reporting year, on 13
January 2017, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”)
with Ms. Chen Xiaoding to acquire the 100% equity
interest in Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold Industry Limited*
CRYIBAES EBR A a], “Shenzhen Ming Jian”) at
a consideration of RMB220 million payable by two
instalments, in which RMB190 million to be settled
by cash within one month upon signing of the
Equity Transfer Agreement and RMB30 million to be
settled by way of the Company allotting and issuing
76,686,332 consideration shares at the issue price
of HK$0.44 per consideration share to her or her
designated nominee(s).

The conditions precedent to the Equity Transfer
Agreement were fulfilled and the completion of
the agreement took place on 10 February 2017.
Accordingly, Shenzhen Ming Jian has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and its results
will be consolidated into the financial statements of
the Company. Details of the above transaction were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 13 January 2017, 16 January 2017 and 10
February 2017.

Disposal

Due to the delay of construction projects, the management
re-assessed the risk and return concerned, and taking into
consideration of other better investment opportunities, the
Group disposed the 51% equity interest in SZTI, which was
acquired in March 2016, to an independent third party for a
cash consideration of RMB35 million in August 2016.

*  For identification purposes only

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

HE

RBEFER  ARGR T —+F—
A+ =B8N ERZ T REEE R
& (SRR ) W RYIBRE:
EBRAR (DFIIBR]) 22
KRB AE ARE220,000,0007T * E5 R EA
K 2 AR ¥8190,000,0007T #7425
EREERBEE —EARUBREN
N A R #30,000,0007T # B A2 &) LA #Z
BITESFRARERBMETTHEIEE
R B ABLEE K 351776,686,332 8 R E I
Mz

IR R ol 2 SR G B A S 5%
BHRER _FT—tF _A+HZTK A
b RNARER B A EE 22BN B
REMEREBGEEFTARRB] 2T
WK LMRFZHBRERARRA
HRA-Z—+F-—HA+=H —FT—+
F-A+RBRZZE—tF=-A+HZ
NG

HREREBTE BEEEHNNIEABER
KB RERHMBERERBIL  RNEER

— =

—R~FNANRE2HEAR35,000,000

TTRA—RBUFE=NTHER T R"F=ZANK
BB 2R8I S5 BRER 2 51 % I f -

*

EHRZT




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS
The Group will continue to explore new markets and step
up promotion and marketing efforts to expand its existing

businesses. The Group will also look for other potential
businesses and related profitable businesses for acquisition.

Joint Ventures

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 22 December 2015, subject to the fulfilment of
the conditions precedent, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a joint
venture agreement with an independent third party
to establish a joint venture company on a 49:51 basis
for the development and the operation of a logistic
industrial park in Shenzhen, the PRC. Details of the
said joint venture agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2015.

On 30 December 2015, the Company and Zhongfa
Junrong Technology Joint Stock Company* ( /2% & g
B A& 1D A 7)) entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement, pursuant to which the
parties shall cooperate and explore the possibility of
developing production industrial parks and logistic
industrial parks in the PRC by way of joint venture
arrangements. As at the date of this annual report, no
joint venture agreement has been signed.

On 26 January 2016, the Company entered into a
strategic co-operation framework agreement with
the People’s Government of Jishou and Hunan
Xincheng Real Estate Development Group Co., Ltd.*
(PEBKEEXEREEEREMTLAD.
to the said agreement, the parties shall co-operate
and explore the possibility of expediting certain
municipal projects (including city infrastructure

Pursuant

facility constructions, road and railway constructions,
and lighting) and developing production industrial
parks in Jishou, Hunan Province, the PRC by way of
joint venture arrangements. It is expected that the
Group's investment return from participating in the
PPP projects in Jishou would be relatively secured and
promising. As at the date of this annual report, no
formal agreement has been signed.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Business Co-operation

As announced on 28 January 2014, the Group has started
to explore co-operation opportunity with CECT-Chinacomm
Communications Co., Limited* (FEEBBEZAR A A,
“CECT-Chinacomm™), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability. CECT-Chinacomm and its ultimate
beneficial owners are independent of and not connected with
the Company and its connected persons. CECT-Chinacomm
has the development right in respect of a parcel of land in the
Beijing Economic and Technological Development Area and
will construct a project known as Beijing Wireless Broadband
Industrial Park (the “Project”) on the parcel of land. An
indirect subsidiary of CECT-Chinacomm is appointed as the
operating company of the Project, and has legally obtained
the Land Use Right Certificate, the Planning Permit and the
Construction Land Use Permit. The co-operation is still in the
discussion stage and no formal agreement has been entered
into by the parties at the date of this annual report. The
Board expects that the Company will be able to join CECT-
Chinacomm and its subsidiary to develop the Project for
commercial benefits.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing Operations

The continuing operations of the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$654.84 million (2015: HK$785.70
million), representing a decrease of 16.66% over last year.
Gross profit from the continuing operations of the Group was
approximately HK$66.87 million (2015: HK$10.62 million).
The profit (net of tax) from continuing operations was
HK$8.58 million.

The profit for the Year was mainly because the rental
segment and money lending segment became mature and
the profit in 2015 was mainly due to the gain arose from
the disposal of BAPP (Northwest) Limited. Earnings per share
from continuing operations and discontinued operations for
the Year was HKO.15 cents (2015: HKO0.51 cents).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$7.34 million (2015: HK$14.24 million), representing a
decrease of 48.45% from last year and 1.12% (2015: 1.8%)
of the Group's revenue. Decrease in the expenses was mainly
due to the closure of several wine and liquor specialty stores
during the Year.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$100.51
million (2015: HK$108.06 million), representing a decrease
of 6.99% over last year. It included the equity-settled share
option expenses for grant of share options in 2016 and
2015, which amounted to HK$27.85 million (2015: HK$80.3
million).

Finance Costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$6.93 million (2015:
HK$10.12 million), representing a decrease of 31.46% over
last year.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there were HK$60.33 million trade deposits paid to
suppliers for the purchase of green food products and
wine. Approximately HK$17.54 million were the progress
payments for the investment targets. HK$6.97 million was
paid as rental deposit in respect of the logistic warehouse
business and HK$6.96 million was paid as deposit for the
new warehouse construction. Retention money of contract
work was approximately HK$10.41 million. Consideration
receivable for the disposal of SZTI was HK$39.08 million.

Discontinued Operations
There are no discontinued operations during the year of
2016.

The gain on disposal of BAPP (Northwest) Limited amounting
to approximately HK$56.75 million was recorded in 2015.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
During the Year, the Company issued a total of
2,347,644,876 new shares due to the issue of bonus shares
and exercise of subscription rights attaching to the share
options by employee and consultants of the Group. In
addition, the Company repurchased a total of 15,520,000
shares of the Company of which 12,688,000 shares were
cancelled during the Year. As a result, the issued share capital
of the Company increased by 2,334,956,876 shares to
4,671,601,752 shares as at 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net assets to
owners of the parent of approximately HK$925.43 million
(2015: HK$1,006.85 million). The slightly decrease of the net
assets was due to the depreciation of Renminbi. Net current
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$173.39 million (2015: HK$506.49 million).
The current ratio (calculated as current assets to current
liabilities) for the Year was 1.49 (2015: 3.78).

The Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$62.54
million (2015: HK$363.30 million), which were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$83.84 million (2015:
HK$118.42 million). The Group’s borrowings included bank
loans of approximately HK$83.84 million (2015: HK$105.64
million). Amounts due to related parties was nil (2015:
HK$12.78 million). All of the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi with the rest in Hong Kong dollars.
The bank loans, other borrowings and amounts due to
related parties are charged at fixed interest rates. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2016, calculated as
net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt, was 23.89% (2015: 0%). These ratios
were at reasonably adequate levels as at 31 December 2016.
Having considered the Group's current unpledged cash and
cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, and banking
facilities, the management believes that the Group’s financial
resources are sufficient for its day-to-day operations. The
Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the Year. The Group's business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact
the Group's results and net assets value as the Group's
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group's treasury policy is to manage its
foreign currency exposure only when its potential financial
impact is material to the Group. The Group will continue to
monitor its foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilize
hedging tools, if available, to manage its foreign currency
exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2016, HK$6.70 million was pledged to
banks to secure the Group's bills payable (2015: Nil).

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the Year, the sales to the top 5 customers amounted
to HK$223,973,000, representing an increase of 21.98%
from HK$183,614,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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% to % to

Category of products HK$'000 total sales HK$'000 total sales

REHER HBHES

ERER THER MBI THIL MBS

Sales to the largest customer Construction work 106,613 16.28 54,368 6.92

HEAEPHNHESR BRIE

Sales to the top 5 customers Staple food, construction work 223,973 34.20 183,614 23.37

HhARPHHES FRM BHRIE

Our top 5 customers in the Year represented approximately
34.20% of our total revenue as compared to approximately
23.37% in 2015. Our largest customer accounted for
approximately 16.28% of our total revenue in the Year as
compared to approximately 6.92% in 2015. These changes
were mainly due to the increase in the construction business.
All of our top 5 customers are located in southern China and
are companies engaged in the construction business and
the trading of food in the PRC. They are required to prepay
for the goods and services at the agreed commercial terms.
Therefore, there was no related doubtful debts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

During the Year, the purchases from the top 5 major suppliers
amounted to HK$280,474,000, representing a decrease of
about 54.27% from HK$613,289,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015.

FA MAERZTEHEINRBEAR
280,474,000 L BB E_T—AF+=A
=+ —HI-FE 613,289,000/ JT i L 4
54.27% °

2016 2015

% to total % to total

Category of products HK$'000 Purchase HK$'000 Purchase

HaRES BB

EmER TER NEDL FET MAEDL

Purchases from the largest supplier Staple food 239,926 51.38 252,436 32.85
MRA R R RER FEm

Purchases from the top 5 suppliers Staple food 280,474 86.25 613,289 79.82
MAAHEERNRER FEm

Our top 5 suppliers in the Year represented approximately
86.25% of our total purchases as compared to approximately
79.82% in 2015. Our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 51.38% of our total purchases in the Year as
compared to approximately 32.85% in 2015. The Group had
always been searching for suppliers with competitive terms.
The suppliers significantly differed from previous year. All
top 5 suppliers are the suppliers of food in the PRC and the
Group is required to prepay for the goods.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Reliance on a Small Number of Key Suppliers

The Group’s five largest suppliers, which accounted for
86.25% of the Group’s total purchases, are all related to the
purchases of staple food. There is no assurance that these
major suppliers shall continue to provide the staple food to us
at price acceptable to our Group. In the event that our Group
were unable to retain these suppliers, or procure replacement
suppliers, our business, results of operations, profitability and
liquidity might be adversely affected. However, the Group
has established strong business relationship with these major
suppliers. The Group has also been diversifying its business
into other industry including logistic warehouse business
and construction business. Therefore, it is expected that the
risk of concentration on key suppliers can be reduced in the
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension
of its return period relative to the expected return or
occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable
to changes of external factors. The Group is well aware of
the importance of exploring various business opportunities
and territories on a continual basis, and has also implemented
such strategy as the top agenda of the Year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
investment assessment and due diligence procedures have
been set up and detailed analysis will be made before
approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of
the investments of our Group would be submitted to the
Board.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions originally denominated and settled in Renminbi,
of which foreign exchange risk is considered insignificant.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to certain of its bank deposits which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Renminbi
experienced certain fluctuation against Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars during the year 2016 which is the
major reason for the exchange loss recognised by the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did
not carry out any hedging activity against foreign currency
risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi may have a financial impact on
the Group.

OTHER INFORMATION

Issue of Bonus Shares

On 7 September 2015, the Board proposed, inter alia,
the Bonus Issue, details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 7 September 2015, 2
December 2015 and 28 December 2015, and the circular of
the Company dated 4 December 2015. The Bonus Issue was
approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 22 December 2015 and
2,336,644,876 bonus shares were issued by the Company on
7 January 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Adjustments to Outstanding Share Options

On 7 January 2016, according to the terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 23 May 2007
("Share Option Scheme”), the exercise price of the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and the
number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise
of the subscription rights attaching to the 217,730,000
outstanding share options were adjusted in the following
manner as a result of the Bonus Issue:

AEERITEBRE

R-ZE—RNE—A+tH REAQRAR-ZZ
+tFERAZT=ARMBARERT S ([IEARE
ETEI]) 2 &K R EIIE TR 2 AR E
21T {E (8 K 74217,730,00017 & A 17 15 B8 P& 4
MG 2 SRR EITERE TREERETZ
A& 8B RAT IR TTMIE T35 e A%

Before Bonus Issue After Bonus Issue

AREeTa ARBTR
Adjusted Adjusted
Number of Exercise number of exercise
share price of share price of
options each share options each share
outstanding option  outstanding option
GES RREZ KRR
TEBRRE SHOBRE HWATE SHBRE
Date of grant R A 2B TR BREHE T%E
23 July 2014 ZE-mELAZt=H 24,800,000 HK$0.75487T 49,600,000 HK$0.377/8 7T
24 July 2015 “E-RAFLAZTOA 192,930,000 HK$2.0607% 7T 385,860,000 HK$1.0307 7T
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Save for the above adjustments, all other terms and
conditions of the outstanding share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme remain unchanged. CHENG &
CHENG LIMITED, the auditor of the Company, has reviewed
and agreed with the adjustments to the outstanding share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme as disclosed
above and the announcement of the Company dated 7
January 2016.

Grant of Share Options

On 14 October 2016, the Company granted share options to
certain eligible persons (including Directors, employees and
consultants of the Group) to subscribe at the exercise price
of HK$0.436 per share for a total of 210,000,000 shares in
the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. Among
the total of 210,000,000 share options granted, 26,000,000
share options were granted to the Directors. Details of the
grant of the share options are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 14 October 2016.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

Bk LAt FEESN - ST 81TR TR 2 W RTT
{ERE R 2 P A E M IR AR 435 N o K
REZBE B S EHA AR AR CEH
LRAZEEXEARRBARS-T—RFE—AL
Bz AATR R S Rt 81 MR Z MR
TTERBARE 2 FHE -

RHERE

RZZE—R"F+A+MEA  ARQRBREERE
E mETAERAL (BEAKEZES
BB RER)EHERE LAFR0.4368 T2
1TEBARE A $£210,000,0008F A& A T o K
B 24 ££210,000,0001 B EE F - H A
26,000,000/ R ENIRTFES - FRARLE
REZHFBHRARRBHAE-T—<F+ A
+IOHZ AMffie




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Subscription of New Shares under General Mandate

On 1 November 2016, the Company entered into
subscription agreements respectively with each of the eight
independent subscribers (the “Subscribers”) pursuant to
which the Subscribers agreed to conditionally subscribe for
a total of 351,599,550 new shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.48 per share in the Company (”Subscription”).
The market price is HK$0.45 per share at the date of the
subscription agreements.

The Board considered that the Subscription represented
an opportunity to raise additional funding for the Group's
business operation and to strengthen the capital base
and financial position for the Group’s future business
developments and broaden the shareholder base of the
Company. Furthermore, the Board considered that the
Subscription is a preferred method of fund raising as
compared with other equity fund raising exercises based on
time and costs involved.

The Subscription was completed on 12 January 2017 and
the Company issued 351,599,550 subscription shares to the
Subscribers.

The aggregate proceeds from the Subscription amounted
to approximately HK$168.77 million and the net proceeds
and the net price per share was approximately HK$168.70
million and HK$0.4798 respectively, after deducting all
the professional fees incurred in the Subscription. The
Company fully utilized the net proceeds for the Group's
business development, investments, acquisition, repayment
of loans and general working capital purposes. Details of
the Subscription are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 1 November 2016, 30 November 2016, 30
December 2016 and 12 January 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

LITIGATION

On 18 August 2015, the Company received a writ of
summons issued by the Registry of the High Court of Hong
Kong (the “Writ") relating to the claim by Mr. Qu Shuncai
("Mr. Qu"), a former Director. Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu,
as the plaintiff of the claim, claims against the Company for
the sum of HK$6,069,000 being damages for the Company’s
wrongful refusal of the issue of 2,500,000 shares of the
Company to him upon exercise of the share options of the
Company by Mr. Qu. As at the date of this annual report, the
Company is still seeking legal advice in relation to the Writ.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 148
(2015: 94) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounting to approximately HK$30.61 million
(2015: HK$23.04 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme aiming
to provide incentives to participants for their contributions
to the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
quality employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended
31 December 2016, except where otherwise stated.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group'’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(0 to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

A\ AUz g
1E %/ﬁ*ﬁ%

TEERER
ARB—EERYBRRZEPAEREE D A
RAEFER ([EFE ) AERIFNEEER
BE R R RS ERR

RRERAEFIN ARBRBE_T - F
T-A=T—HALFE-—BETELEY Q%
FRAEMR AR ([HRPT])FESH EmARR ([ EH
A K+ mAEm b EER TR ([h%
EORSTAIL) BUFTA ST AR

EE=g
EXSRERENEEART REERAEHE
ZERB BEARLEE BEEENRITR
BETEEE-EFSNAEET MIEEE
ARE

@ HIEMBRHARRNEREARRLT
MR

() BEMEREFNSNEEABNFI
LFEEERER:

© WINEEEARAEETEZMEER
ETEOBREFER

d HIE-BROLERESFREBERNE
STEARARFM(IME) R

() MR ARBETEEEART
EERERBRENMME-

A B &

FEEAREXEEZERERA T
2016 &£ 3§

19




20

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their participation in Board
meetings bring independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interests
and management process, to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The independent non-
executive directors ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered
in an objective manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current Board size is adequate for
its present operations.

At 31 December 2016, the Board comprised three executive
directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman), Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng and Mr. Ke Xionghan; two non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Ho Wing Yan and Ms. Zhang Yujie; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr.
Li Xiaofeng and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Biographical details of the
directors are set out on pages 37 to 40 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all
time met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive directors also
represented at least one-third of the members of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee has
assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors in particular, Dr. Loke Yu, who has served the Board
for more than nine years. Dr. Loke Yu does not have any
management role in the Company and its subsidiaries since
his appointment. He has expressed his willingness clearly
to exercise independent judgement and has been giving
objective views to the Company. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having any unfavourable influence on
his independence. The Board is satisfied that, as well proven
by the valuable independent judgement and advice given
by Dr. Loke Yu over the years, Dr. Loke Yu has the required
character, integrity, independence and experience to perform
the role of an independent non-executive director. The Board
is not aware of any circumstances that might influence
Dr. Loke Yu in exercising his independent judgement and
therefore believes he is still independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other
except as disclosed in “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 24 June 2016, Mr.
Jiang Jianjun was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Li
Jianging was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer after Mr. Li Jianging retired as an executive
director and ceased to be the chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 24 June 2016. Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
the Chairman of the Company, provides leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board works effectively and all
important issues are discussed and dealt with in a timely
manner. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group's structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including
the appointment of a chief executive officer, are necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company's articles of
association, one-third of the directors, including the non-
executive directors, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting. The non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.

Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of the
Company's affairs. The most up-to-date terms of reference of
these committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has had an Audit Committee since 2001. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's
financial statements, overseeing the Group's financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and making recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr.
Li Xiaofeng and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman
of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditor the audit plan, the external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and the Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii)
discuss auditing and financial reporting matters, including
the review of the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and the unaudited financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2016 with
recommendations to the Board for approval; (iii) review and
make recommendations to the Board on the auditor’s re-
appointment and remuneration, and (iv) review the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. No individual director or any of his/
her associates is involved in decisions relating to his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, namely, Mr. Jiang Jianjun
and two independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr.
Loke Yu and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of
the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were three
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; (ii)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the newly appointed director; (iii)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the retired director for his tenure of office
in 2016; and (iv) review and make recommendations to the
Board on grant of share options.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2016 are disclosed in notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors, making recommendations to the Board on
nominations, appointment of directors and Board succession.
The Board adopted a board diversity policy which aims to
set out the approach to achieving diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises the benefits of diversity of Board
members. The Nomination Committee selects candidates
for directorship with reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to the candidate’s
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee considered that the
Board has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business.
Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least
once a year.

At 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and
two independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Loke Yu
and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Mr. Jiang Jianjun is the chairman of the
committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were two
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review
the structure, size and diversity of the Board; (i) nominate
the retiring directors for re-election at the annual general
meeting held on 24 June 2016; (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors with reference to the
requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) nominate a new
director for appointment to the Board.

The directors’ attendance at the meetings held is set out in
the section below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, there were seven Board meetings
held by the directors, four of which were regular Board
meetings to (i) review and discuss the Group’s development
strategies, investment projects and the operational and
financial performance of the Group, and (ii) approve the
annual report for 2015 and the interim report for 2016. The
other three Board meetings were held to consider certain ad
hoc matters. Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code,
notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board
meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. During
the Year, certain regular Board meetings were convened with
less than 14 days’ notice to enable the directors to react
timely and make expeditious decision making in respect
of transactions which were of significance to the Group's
business. As a result, the aforesaid regular Board meetings
were held with a shorter notice period than required with
no objection by the directors. The Board will do its best
endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3
of the CG Code in future. In addition to Board meetings, the
Chairman of the Board met with the non-executive directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) without
the presence of other executive directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
minutes of each meeting with appropriate details, which are
available to all directors. Draft minutes are circulated to all
directors for comment and approval after the meetings within
the period permitted by the directors.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisers if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

EBRNRESHERR

Exees BTIREH YEREXRK
FEENGRAB-RBE_T—RF+-A
=T RALFE EFETLREZTgEEH H
FORREFTSEHSF A0 LA
SEBRR KRERB MAKEZERYS
EE RE-T-RHFZFRRE-FT—RX
FZHPRE - H=XREEEERTIRER
ETHEMNEEMRT - RELXE AT ZT
AMEXEAI3MG ARESEEHeREED
ELPVURZBAN NEAAESHAKEES
HE-RAFE HETREFTSEHEANE
HAR14B 2 BAM AR NEEEREAE
BEBEMEBEKRNZ RS EH MO EIL MR
EHORR-Hit tAEEEEHER I EE
FEFERZRBNBERNTUEBREBNHR
M2 BAMRRT EFERBEE NN BERY
BRERERTUZ TR FEA IR HATE
REFEERI EFEIRCRALERME
TEFHRZBERATEFATES (BB
HERTEE)EE

NREMERDEFE LR ERHRE LRERE
STHEERARANRD - RAEAMETRERE
EFLFAET 28RS MAESHAE
Bl-BEXReBBRECEFTHENHHERN &
BALHENBESETEREFER UHRER
R -

MEESHZEERBIERNER XAIER
FENBRTREE - HEHNXSIBLER
BRER -FAERTATXZRBIBEEA
AWENER RS UWHRREBESSEF
AR B @R R A KRR P




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, follow all the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.

Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and the annual general meeting held
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out as
follows:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

HERY SERERERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
Name of directors EERR EZe8d ERZES88E FMZESSeE REZE88F 2 RREFA®
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) TRERE (1E) 717 - 3/3 212 11
M. Jiang Jiancheng TR i - - - 0/1
Mr. Ke Xionghan® a3 pitatd 33 - - - N/A
Mr. Li Jianqing (Chief Executive Officer)? ZRI5 % £
(1TEA##) 0 23 - - - 01
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan IS . 6/7 - - - 11
Ms. Zhang Yuijie NEARZT 0/7 - - - 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#77ZF
Dr. Loke Yu BEEMEL 6/7 2/2 3/3 2/2 0/1
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BEkitE 5/7 12 - - 0/1
Mr. Ho Man Fai OB 4/7 12 33 2/2 0/1
- The director is not a committee member ;2 Z T HE S S B
N/A: Not applicable 7~i& A
Notes: P aE
(a) Mr. Ke Xionghan was appointed as an executive director of (a) My EEE T ANF AT OARE

the Company with effect from 24 June 2016.

(b) Mr. Li Jianging retired as an executive director of the
Company at the conclusion of the annual general meeting
held on 24 June 2016. Following his retirement, Mr. Li also
ceased to be the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 24 June 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director is provided with an induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training
they have undertaken and they are requested to provide a
training record to the Company.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31
December 2016 is summarized as follows:

briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant

EEZABRERAEXRE

BUMTESEREAEIZERTSES O
ABER URREEHARTEELEERE
EERIER ARTE2RABRER EMARAIRE
HEMEERE T2 BEERER-

ARBEBEE2MBEEEEBNERLE
I AR K2 B RE © AN 2 A) B AR TE 35 o)l Re 8% DA 13 B
EERBREM2ENEIIRE YEKES
[ B4R AR Bl RO 8% o

BEAATREZ DS EENEBE-T—A
FE+- A=+ —BILEEER YR m
T

Attending expert
Reading
materials relevant
to the business
or directors’ duties

to the business
or directors’ duties

SHEHEMELSR
EEREZ
ERENE HMEFEEKR
Name of directors EEHR B#E  aE EEREZER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun LREESLAE v/ v
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TS E v v
Mr. Ke Xionghan® 0] HE ) 55 A @ v v
Mr. Li Jianging® FRFREY
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Al ek MR v
Ms. Zhang Yujie NERZ L
Independent Non-executive BB ITEE
Directors
Dr. Loke Yu B g MIE v
Mr. Li Xiaofeng R T4 v/ v
Mr. Ho Man Fai A S8 5t A v/ 4

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Notes:

(a) Mr. Ke Xionghan was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 24 June 2016.

(b) Mr. Li Jianging retired as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 24 June 2016.

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
The Company did not receive the training record from Ms.
Zhang Yujie, a non-executive director, and Mr. Li Jianging, a
former executive director retired on 24 June 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, the Company confirms that the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Code and
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. It is
also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true and
fair view of the Group's financial position on a going-concern
basis and other inside information announcements and
financial disclosures. The management provides the Board
with the relevant information it needs to discharge these
responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 82 and 91 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, CHENG & CHENG
LIMITED, including the followings:

BB AT B
WHE-F—AF+-B=+—HILFE B
GET S EIN G B E T
BRARZMEBEATEE:

Fee paid/payable

e ENEH

HK$

Services rendered Frig AR 7 BT
Audit services Z RS 850,000
Non-audit services IEAZ AR TS 100,000
Total st 950,000

Non-audit services refer to other reporting services related to
transactions of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing
risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management has to ensure
the effectiveness of these systems.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities of each level of the structure are summarized
below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies
and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives; ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.
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Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal
control systems; overseeing the Group's risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems at least annually, and such review
should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control; ensuring the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and considering major
findings on risk management and internal control matters,
and reports and makes recommendations to the Board.

The senior management designs, implements and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk
that may potentially impact the major processes of the
operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate risk
in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and
follow up the findings on risk management and internal
control matters raised by the internal auditor or external
risk management and internal control adviser; and provides
confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the
findings of the review and makes recommendations to the
Board and management to improve the material systems
deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and considers them effective and
adequate.
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Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board's responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects. Senior management is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will meet with
various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given
year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by
certain members of senior management and presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the
Company'’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could
occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — senior management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — senior management may implement
a risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or the severity of the risk to an
acceptable level.

o Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable
for the Company and that no action is required. The
risk would continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk does
not increase to an unacceptable level.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the
internal auditor who reports directly to the Audit Committee.
Internal auditor plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material
controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management
to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies identified.
The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his
recommendations by operations management and reports
the outcomes to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider, and his primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Chai Chung
Wai, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company's articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1101A, 11/F, East Ocean
Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, or the registered office of the Company at P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands for the attention of the Board or Company Secretary
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company'’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.
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If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address : Unit 1101A, 11/F, East Ocean Centre
98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Fax : (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2016.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.
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Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders and
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. The Company
regards the annual general meeting as an important event
and all directors, senior management and external auditor
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’
participation. The Company has also complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed
at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

The directors and senior management of the Company as at
the date of this annual report are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. JIANG Jianjun, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in March 2013, and as the chairman
and the managing director of the Company in May 2013.
He resigned as the managing director of the Company in
March 2014. Mr. lJiang is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He has been engaged in property investment
and management since 1995. He also has experience in
distribution of wine and liquor. Mr. Jiang is concurrently a
committee member of Shenzhen Baoan District of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president
of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber of Commerce and
Shenzhen Baoan Shajing Chamber of Commerce. He is the
brother of Mr. Jiang Jiancheng, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. JIANG Jiancheng, aged 45, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in April 2014. He
graduated from Department of Industrial Control And
Automation of Hefei University of Technology. Mr. Jiang is
the general manager of Shenzhen Jiangshi Longhui Trading
Limited. He has been engaged in real estate leasing industry
since 1993 and has extensive experience in marketing and
management. Mr. Jiang was previously a consultant of the
Company from September 2010 to March 2014. He is the
brother of Mr. Jiang Jianjun, the chairman and an executive
director of the Company.

Mr. KE Xionghan, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in June 2016. He graduated from
the Department of Law of Huazhong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Ke is the president of Shenzhen
Tiantianwang Taige Technology Co. Ltd.* (FRIIIKKEEZRAEFRE
BB AR]), acompany mainly engaged in the import and
export business of electronic products and mineral products.
He was the general manager of Indonesia Huaming Yang
International Trading Company* (EJJEZERFIZFEEE 51
7)) and worked in the Bank of China, Zhanjiang Branch for
over 20 years, during which period, he served as the Section
Chief of Retail Business Department, Company Business
Department and Credit Management Department as well as
the president of the sub-branch.

*  For identification purposes only
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EEREREEERRE

Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 35, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in April 2015. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Applied
Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
Degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Ho is an Associate Member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS") and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
She is also a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement issued
by HKICS. Ms. Ho is a director of BMI Listed Corporate
Services Limited and is responsible for managing the business
operations of the company secretarial and administrative
services for the reputable listed groups in various industries.
She has extensive experience in a diversified range of
professional corporate services for Hong Kong and offshore
companies from various business sectors. Ms. Ho particularly
specializes in corporate governance advisory, corporate
restructuring, corporate financing and directors’ professional
development with emphasis on listed companies and she
continues to advise on these matters on a consultancy basis.
Ms. Ho actively participates in the formulation and execution
of strategy at the companies. She has been providing
practical professional services to companies listed on the
Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange for over 10 years.

Ms. ZHANG Yujie, aged 54, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in September 2015.
Ms. Zhang holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from
Heilongjiang Commercial College* (R8I ZFt), she
is a senior accountant. Ms. Zhang has extensive experience
in corporate management and rich expertise in financial
management. Ms. Zhang is the deputy general manager of
Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability
Group Co., Ltd* (REIRBIEANEESEERE
f£/2 A)) (“Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang”). She was
the accountant of a subsidiary of Jiansanjiang Materials
Department* (= I¥ & B ), general manager of
Jiansanjiang Materials Department Fuels Company* (&
=IWEBRKEIAF]) and Jiansanjiang Crude Oil & Fuels
Company* (= LA ML 2 7)) respectively, head of
finance department of Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang,
and deputy chief financial officer of PetroChina & NK Fuels
Co, Ld* (FMBERIREBEHERAR) .

*  For identification purposes only
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Dr. LOKE Yu alias LOKE Hoi Lam, aged 67, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in June 2005. He holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor
of Business Administration degree from University of
South Australia. He is a Fellow Member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Dr. Loke has over 40 years of
experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He is the company secretary of Minth Group
Limited and serves as an independent non-executive director
of V1 Group Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, China
Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment
Company Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Zhong An Real
Estate Limited, Chiho-Tiande Group Limited, Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited, China Household Holdings
Limited, Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited, Lamtex Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China New Energy Power Group
Limited), Forebase International Holdings Limited and Hang
Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited. Dr.
Loke was an independent non-executive director of Mega
Medical Technology Limited from June 2014 to January 2017.
The shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LI Xiaofeng, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2012.
He graduated from Department of Finance of Jinan University.
Mr. Li is a supervisor of the credit department of Shenzhen
Rural Commercial Bank Shajing branch. He has been engaged
in financial services industry since 1998.
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EEREREEERRE

Mr. HO Man Fai, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in June 2014. He
is the chairman of California Restaurant and has extensive
experience in catering and management. Mr. Ho is a
director of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce,
a director of Hong Kong Food Science and Technology
Association Limited, a director of Yuen Long Merchants
Education Promotion Limited, a school manager of Yuen
Long Merchants Association Primary School and a general
affairs officer of Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAI Chung Wai, aged 50, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. He joined the Group in May 2013. Mr. Chai
obtained his master degree of Accounting in 2004 and of
Business Administration in 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Chai has extensive experience of over 20 years in the
accounting and financial field in various listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRS
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The Group is committed to promoting sustainable
development, which is extremely important to create long-
term value for the Group's shareholders, clients, employees,
other stakeholders, as well as general public. The Company
cares about the impact of its daily operation on environment
and society, strives to set a good example for the public,
while conducting business operation, it makes effort to meet
the interests of all stakeholders, economy, environment,
society and corporate governance and does its best to
achieve a fine balance.

ENVIRONMENT RIB

A1. Policy on emission of exhaust gas and Al. EHBRRAZREHN mKE it
greenhouse gas, discharging pollution through WS BEREZTBREYNELESN
water and land, producing hazardous and non- BR

hazardous wastes
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Protecting environment is one of our key concerns;
we are committed to protecting environment
and focusing on environmental protection in our
operation, hoping that through rigorous supervision
and control to reduce our long-term negative impact
on environment.
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1. Energy Management 1.
The indirect greenhouse gas emission, which
generated from our daily electricity power

consumption, is the main source of the Group’s
carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and
disclosing the Company’s carbon footprint to
find out and control the impact of our daily
operation on environment. At the same time,
we will implement the following energy-saving
and energy efficiency measures at various office
locations to reduce greenhouse gas emission:

a. Install high-performance electrical
equipments
b. Purchasing department is required to

purchase energy-efficient products

d Employ automatic lighting control
system

d. Deploy LED lighting on office floors
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e. The employees must turn off light
and unnecessary energy device to
reduce energy consumption and avoid
unnecessary waste of energy

f. Deploy natural light as much as possible
on office floors

g. Install auxiliary electricity meter to
monitor electricity consumption

h. Other energy-saving and energy
efficiency measures

Our finance department should collect
information about usage of electricity annually
for the management to disclose in their
ESG report in the financial year starts from
1 January, 2017 or later.

Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we
adopt a responsible waste management
policy, including waste avoidance, reducing
waste from its source and reuse, recycling
and responsible disposal of waste. Our offices
should post memos and notices everywhere,
encouraging the employees to reduce the
production of waste. We have introduced
waste separation measures from the start:

a. Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper
plate, etc.)

b. Metal (aluminum can and other metal
cans)

C. Plastics (plastic bottle, container and

packaging materials)

d. Other recyclables (such as old cloth,
electrical appliance, computer,
magazine, etc.)
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A2. Policy on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials)

1.

Reducing electricity consumption

Comply with the Group’s policy on emission of
exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharging
pollution through water and land, producing
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes to reduce
electricity consumption.

Paper reduction
In order to reduce waste paper, we have
developed the following measures:

a. Deploy recycling bins to collect used
paper products such as waste paper,
poster, letter and envelope;

b. Place waste paper recycling bin next to
printer and set aside the papers that
already printed once so that you can
choose whether reuse it or put it into
the bin;

d Saving paper by double-sided printing;

d. Writing on both sides of papers;

e. Bring your own cup and avoid using
paper cup;

f. Reuse stationeries such as file folder and
envelope;

g. Reuse packaging box; and

h. Other than the waste paper that
contains confidential information, waste
paper should be shipped to paper mill
or scrap paper company so as to be
recycled into new paper.

Each year, our finance department shall collect
information about the paper products the
Company purchased and the waste paper
that shipped to scrap paper company or paper
mill for the management to disclose in their
ESG report in the financial year starts from
1 January, 2017 or later.
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3.

Water conservation

In Hong Kong, fresh water is a precious
resource, we should economize water, try to
protect water resource, and for which we have
developed the following measures:

a. Repair dripping faucet or hose in a
timely manner

b. Adopt effective water-saving production
methods and instruments

d Check water consumption regularly
d. Minimize water pressure

Green procurement

Green procurement is based on reducing
environmental load. Quality, cost, delivery
time are the main focuses when the Company
procures goods or chooses supplier, but other
than that, we give priority to environmentally
friendly and energy-saving products.

a. Give priority to energy-efficient products
at the highest level

b. Give priority to effective water-saving
products
d We require the suppliers to reduce

packaging material

d. Send the message to suppliers that we
value environmental protection, energy
saving
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Policy on mitigating the Group's significant
impact on environment and natural resources

The Group manages and minimizes the impact it may
cause environment, directly or indirectly, through the
following methods:

1. Make sure its business operation comply with
the environmental law in Hong Kong and its
operating locations

2. Establish and improve environmental protection
mechanism to ensure its operation does not
pollute water and land

3. Monitor gas emission and use of resource,
establish emission reduction target

4. Make sure that in our daily business operation,
with all efforts, we conserve energy, water and
other raw materials to reduce direct impact on
environment

5. Whenever the Company holds banquet, shark
fin is out of question and sustainable seafood
should be served. Order reasonable quantity
and reduce waste

6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and
adopt other energy-saving measures

7. Cooperate with government agencies and
support environmental organizations’ activities

A3.
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RE HEREBHRS

SOCIETY

Employment and Labor convention

Employee is an important asset of the Company, we care
about their well-being, respect their personal traits, make
sure that all employees are subject to legislative protection
and have equal opportunity in their career path, also, we
strive to increase their sense of belonging.

B1. Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, day off, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits

1. Salary

We offer competitive pay and benefits to the
employees according to their job requirement
and individual performance. We will annually
review the overall salary and benefits to
ensure the Company’s competitiveness in
local market, we even refer to the relevant
industries and similar organizations. Each year,
KPIs will provide direction and guidance to the
employees’ individual work plan. We also assess
the achievements and contributions of the
employees to appraise and reward them.

2. Dismissal
We ensure that all employees under the
employment protection laws of Hong Kong,
including:

a. Whenever an employee offers to resign
or being laid off, human resource should
interview him or her before quitting to
find out the reason of quitting;

b. It is required to issue employment
verification document to the dismissed
employee;

d When the employer terminates

employment contract, the dismissed
employee shall be given due notice or
wages in lieu of notice, and the notice
should not be given during his or her
annual leave and maternity leave;
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d. An employee cannot be dismissed when
she has been confirmed pregnant or
given notice of pregnancy;

e. An employee cannot be dismissed when
he or she takes a paid sick leave;

f. An employee cannot be dismissed
because he or she gives evidence or
information in any legal proceeding
relating to enforcement of labor laws,
industrial accident or breach of work
safety regulation;

g. An employee cannot be dismissed
because he or she joins in labor union or
participates in labor union activities; and

h. If an employee is injured on duty, if a
compensation agreement has not yet
been reached or the relevant evaluation
certificate has not yet been issued, the
employee cannot be dismissed.

Recruitment and promotion

In the Company, recruitment and promotion
should be fair and open for all employees,
and cannot be affected by age, sex, physical
or mental health status, marital status, family
status, race, skin colour, nationality, religion,
political affiliation and sexual orientation and
other factors, the employees will be recognized
and rewarded by their contribution, work
performance and skills, the Company will do
its best to provide them with good working
environment and development opportunity.

Working hours and day-off

The employees shall enjoy deserved days-off
under the laws of Hong Kong or the location
they work at.
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Hong Kong employees are entitled to enjoy the
following days-off:

a. Each employee can take a day off in
every 7 days;

b. If the day-off falls on a statutory holiday,
compensatory time off shall be offered
on the following day;

d Manager can ask employee to work on
the day off, but employee can choose
not to. If the employee agrees, a day off
can be arranged in other time, but the
said day off shall be planned before the
scheduled day off in the same month, or
within 30 days after it;

d. Statutory holidays;

e. Paid annual leave prescribed by
employment contract;

f. Sick leave;

g. Female employee can take maternity
leave so long as she complies with
the continuous contract to serve the
employer and give notice of pregnancy
before the leave; and

h. Maternity leave cannot be substituted by
wage.

Policy on equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits

Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance must be complied
with, equal opportunity must be provided on
recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
remuneration, benefits and termination of
contract. Such opportunities shall not be
affected by factors such as age, gender,
physical or mental health status, marital status,
family status, race, skin colour, nationality,
religion, political affiliation and sexual
orientation.
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Policy on safe working environment and
safeguarding the employees from occupational
hazards

We are committed to protecting the health and safety
of the employees and the community, we require all
employees to comply with all relevant occupational
health and safety regulations, and do our utmost
to provide them with safe and healthy working
environment, as a result, we have implemented the
following methods:

10.

11.

Develop internal guidelines to ensure that office
and work environment is in line with or higher
than the requirements of relevant laws;

Establish safety procedures for the recognized
dangerous work;

Provide necessary protective equipment and
medical insurance to the employees;

Ensure that office and working environment is
healthy and safe, regularly check machinery and
equipment;

Establish emergency measures such as fire or
explosion emergency plan;

Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation
drills;

Establish mechanism to record industrial injury
and analyze the cause;

Provide and maintain an environmental, healthy
and safe working condition;

Unless prior approval, purchasing alcoholic
beverage and illegal drugs is prohibited in the
workplace;

Actively promote environmental protection,
health and safety awareness of the employees,
and support development of environmental
protection, health and safety in the industry;
and

Provide all employees with needed job
information, guidance, training and supervision.
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B3.

B4.

Policy on improving the employees’ knowledge
and skills to perform their responsibilities

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. We understand that the employees’
knowledge and skills are essential to the Company’s
operation and business growth, good development
plan lays a good foundation for the employees to face
business challenge in the future, it also helps them
to grasp promotion opportunities, fulfill their career
aspirations. We provide the employees with effective
training and develop a clear promotion ladder,
ensuring that the employees have the required skills;
we also nurture outstanding successors for the Group
and breed academic atmosphere. The Group conducts
performance evaluation annually, and based on the
assessment result to provide the staff with appropriate
training, and offer job, development and promotion
opportunities for outstanding employees. Under
the Group’s Human Resource Management System
requirements, HR manager is responsible for carrying
out related assessment and training.

Policy on preventing child labor or forced labor
The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy
on child labor and forced labor, such conduct is
prohibited by international standard and relevant
domestic legislation and shall never be tolerated in
here. In any part of the business process (including our
subcontractors or suppliers), child labor or forced labor
is not allowed. We see child labor or forced labor as a
serious crime. The following is the policy on preventing
child labor or forced labor:

1. Child labor refers to employment of people
under 16 years of age, if any country or region
in which the Company or its subsidiary operates
has a more stringent definition of child labor,
the definition shall prevail;

2. Forced labor refers to people who provide labor
or service against their will and under the threat
of punishment;
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The hired employees must be at least 16 years
of age, the Group shall never recruit child
labor and forced labor, and if it knows child
labor or forced labor exists in its suppliers or
subcontractors, the Group will not conduct
business with them anymore;

The employees under 18 may not engage in
any possible hazardous work and prohibited
to work at night, because it might affect their
education;

Before hiring any job applicant, HR should
take effective procedures to verify their age.
HR should check documents that prove the
age of the applicant, including government-
issued photo identification and birth certificate,
driver’s license, household register, academic
certificates or any other credentials that prove
the date of birth. And HR must ensure that
the applicant’s looks is consistent with the
photograph on the ID card;

HR department should carry out prevention
training about child labor and forced labor,
especially those responsible for recruitment;

If employment of child labor under the legal
minimum age is found in the Group, we will
see to the best interests of the child, and take
the following measures in line with relevant
legislations:

a. Take the child away from workplace
immediately, ensure the safety of the
child;

b. Immediately notify the person in charge

of HR to verify all relevant information,
confirm whether the child under 16
years of age, sever labor relations with
the child, notify the local social welfare
institution, and take remedial measures
to protect the child’s best interest;
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Send the child to a special occupational
health labor inspection institution to
do medical check-up, it is required to
confirm the child’s physical and mental
health, and conduct investigation to fully
understand the child’s situation;

When the child reaches legal minimum
age for employment, we will provide the
child with re-employment opportunity;
and

Immediately find out the problems
that exist in the hiring process of
the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90
working days.

8. If forced labor is found in the Group, we will
take the following measures in accordance with
the requirements of the relevant legislation:

Take the labor away from workplace
immediately, ensure the safety of the
labor;

Immediately notify the person in charge
of HR to verify all relevant information,
confirm whether the person is subject to
compulsory labor;

Send the labor to a special occupational
health labor inspection institution to
do medical check-up, it is required to
confirm the labor’s physical and mental
health, and conduct investigation to fully
understand the labor's situation; and

Immediately find out the problems exist
in the hiring process of the operating
location and take improvement
measures within 90 working days.
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OPERATING PRACTICE

B5.

Policy on controlling environmental and social
risk in supply chain

We attach importance to developing and maintaining
long-term relationships with our suppliers, looking
forward to forming long-term partnerships with them.
We will take a fair and open principle on procurement
of materials and services. We will only cooperate with
the suppliers that share common moral values and
standards with us, the Company also supports and
encourages the suppliers to promote efficient use of
resources and environmental protection and fulfill
corporate social responsibility:

1. We advocate the principle of fair and open
competition, and based on mutual trust, we
develop and maintain long-term relationships
with the suppliers and contractors;

2. We have strict ethical standards in procurement
of materials and services to ensure the quality
of the finished products and maintain the
continued confidence of the clients, suppliers
and general public;

3. We review our suppliers, assess them based
on price, quality, suitability and demands, only
those being rated as qualified are our approved
suppliers, we only purchase from the approved
suppliers;

4. We conduct follow-up assessment on the
suppliers, and, if necessary, review them
through a third party organization. When a
supplier is found to be inconsistent with the
Company's policy or contractual requirements,
the Company will terminate future cooperation
until the situation has been improved,;

5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate,
responsible and capable suppliers;

6. Support and encourage the suppliers to
improve their environmental products and
services, and their employees’ benefits and
protection;
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B6.

7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant
laws, regulations and contractual obligations;
and

8. We shall adopt effective monitoring and

management system to detect and prevent
bribery, fraud or other misconducts in
procurement and bidding processes.

Policy on health, safety, advertising, labeling,
privacy and remedies of the products and
services

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with
high-quality products and services and settling
customer complaints effectively, continuously
improving service level and ensuring customer
satisfaction.

1. Make sure that the products and services
comply with related laws and guidelines;

2. Provide the customers with accurate product
information and high-quality products, and
develop recovery policy and after-sale service
for related products;

3. If there is a problem with a product, we will
take the initiative to explain the problem and
find a mutually satisfactory solution for the
customers; and

4. After handling a customer complaint, a
document should be archived properly, and
the relevant department shall review the
complaint and develop measures to prevent the
recurrence of similar complaints, so that the
Company's service quality keeps improving.

Advertising, labeling and protection of customer
information

Customer information will only be used for
business purpose, not for other unrelated purposes.
All employees should handle and use customer
information with extreme caution, protect customer
information, and comply with statutory requirements
in privacy law.
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Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering

Ethics and integrity is the cornerstone of the
Company's success, we adopts a Zero Tolerance
approach to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, in their daily work, the directors,
management and staff must comply with related
national and local government laws and regulations
on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. All employees not only have responsibility
to understand and comply with the above regulations,
but also have obligation to report violation to the fit
and appropriate person. Any person, who contravenes
the regulations, will be subject to disciplinary sanction.
We will make every effort to protect the informer
and received information. However, if an informer’s
intention is to harm others, they may be subject to
disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefit

Any employee (including the directors,
management and all full-time, part-time,
hourly, temporary workers) cannot directly,
indirectly, or in any form, solicit or accept any
form of benefits or do anything that might
be seen as bribe from a third party, including,
but not limited to, money, gift, excessive
entertainment and hospitality, subsidized
travel and accommodation, loan, pledging as
guarantor, extending preferential credit terms,
fee, reward, position, employment, contract,
service, privilege, exemption of all or part of the
responsibilities that ought to be fulfilled. The
employees should reject any direct or indirect
interests and benefits relating to the Group's
business, should such benefits being accepted,
their objective attitude would hamper, or the
interests of the Company would be harmed or
invaded, or causing bias or misconduct.
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In social events such as festivals, activities,
entertainments and other daily routine, refusing
to accept a modest gift may be considered
impolite or lack of social grace, with that
in mind, under the following principles, the
employees may consider accepting benefits on
a voluntary basis:

a. Receiving related benefits will not
affect performance and decision of the
employee;

b. The employee will not feel the need to

reciprocate;

d The employee can openly discuss the
benefits;

d. Holiday or banquet gift, prize or
souvenir, its value shall not more than
HKD500.

For gift, prize or souvenir worth more than
HKD500, the employee shall file a declaration
form, if the employee has questions about
admissibility of the related benefits, he or she
could consult HR manager or general manager.

If the Company finds out any employee's
inappropriate behavior of soliciting or accepting
benefits, it will call the police and terminate
labor relations with the employee.

Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide
bribe or improper benefits to any person or
organization in order to seek personal gain or
group interests. If the Company finds out any
employee has conducted bribery, it will call the
police and terminate labor relations with the
employee.
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Extortion

Any person who seeks for benefit for his own
or another person, or with intent to cause loss
to another person, and makes any unwarranted
demand by extortion, such conduct shall be
considered as extortion. All employees shall
not participate in, assist, cover up any kind
of extortion, if the Company finds out any
employee has conducted extortion, it will call
the police and terminate labor relations with
the employee.

Fraud

Any person, who uses any means of deception
to benefit himself or another person, or with
intent to cause loss to another person, such
conduct shall be considered fraud, the common
employee fraud includes embezzlement,
wage fraud and stealing company assets. All
employees shall not participate in, assist, cover
up any fraud, if the Company finds out any
employee has conducted fraud, it will call the
police and terminate labor relations with the
employee.

Money Laundering

Money laundering refers to an individual or
institution attempts to conceal the source
of illicit money, or makes such money look
legitimate in any way. The Company will not
tolerate any employee conduct, support, and
assist any form of money laundering.

The Company should establish an anti money
laundering team, general manager should be
the team leader and responsible for organizing
the anti money laundering team. The team'’s
main responsibilities include organizing,
implementing anti money laundering task,
investigating reported money laundering,
arranging anti money laundering training,
working with regulatory and judiciary
authorities to investigate suspicious transactions
of funds, as well as paying attention to
requirements and updates in anti money
laundering laws and regulations.
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Anti money laundering procedures include
identifying clients, keeping transaction
record, reporting and follow-up investigating

58

of suspicious transaction, and anti money
laundering training.

a. Identifying clients BENE P & (7
In the development of clients, sales people XBABEREREP,H
must establish a high degree of awareness VB = BB RO B
of anti money laundering, through EH OBRAEERPHR
communication with prospective clients mEHEBEBREPERE
to comprehensively grasp the clients’ B EPEANE—
information, running the first check e B PEKINFAEE  TE
on the clients. After successful client REPRFFLFT RS
acquisition, regular contact is required to REFEER P &IIEN -
grasp the clients’ updates. If an abnormal BMARER RKRE
situation occurs, the sales person needs BB TR -
to timely communicate with the relevant
departments.

b. Keeping transaction record RIFR 5 a0 7

Sales people and accounting personnel
should keep customer identification
information, including registering
customer identification and related
information, all sorts of records
and information reflecting payment
authority’s customer identification
process, and keep transaction
records such as each transaction’s
information, business voucher, ledger
and documents reflecting real situation
of each transaction and other relevant
information to ensure that each
transaction is traceable.
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Reporting and follow-up investigating of
suspicious transaction

Sales people and accounting staff, should
they find out a suspicious transaction,
need to report it immediately to the
corporate headquarter. The headquarter
analyzes and investigates all suspicious
transaction reported, if there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the
transaction or the customer has ties
with money-laundering, terrorism and
other criminal activities, the HKSAR
Government JFIU should be notified.

Anti money laundering training

All employees should join in anti money
laundering training at least once a
year, the training includes learning the
danger of money laundering, anti money
laundering regulations, the role of the
employees in anti-money laundering,
how to identify suspicious transactions,
ways to report suspicious transaction,
the consequences if one fails to comply
with anti money laundering regulations.
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COMMUNITY

BS.

Policy on finding out the needs of the community,
at which the Company operates, by means of
community involvement, and ensuring that its
business activities will take into account the
interests of the community

For the Company’s long-term development, community
participation is important, we are committed to
promoting development and construction activities
of the community, at which we operate. We benefit
the community through a variety of actions, such as
investment, contributing money, time, products, services,
influence, management knowledge and other resources.

We participate in community building through three
main ways:

1. Organize, facilitate and support the staff to
take part in volunteer services, such as regularly
visiting people who need help, arranging
outdoor activities for disadvantaged groups,
holding Blood Donation Day.

2. By means of donation, we donate money,
goods or services, directly supporting or
funding projects of various social service
agencies. In addition to donation itself, we
also appeal to the Company’s stakeholders
(including the employees and customers) to
donate.

3. We endeavor to provide employment
opportunities for the disadvantaged and
create a win-win situation. The Company is
willing to hire the disabled people who have
completed retraining courses, and give priority
to purchasing from the suppliers who hired the
said disabled people, or participate in a variety
of mentorship programs.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 41 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 92 to
223.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 224. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 31 and 32
to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
repurchased a total of 15,520,000 shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$7,075,000, of which 12,688,000 shares
were cancelled during the Year and the number of issued
shares of the Company was reduced accordingly. The details
of the repurchased shares are as follows:

BrRBEERE
ARRIEMERAR RH 2B EAPLER]
BERNEBELBEENSRE ERAQAEE
BUEPIMRERFIR2HET K-

BE BEIHEARQAA LTRSS

HE-_Z-—XF+-_A=Z=+—HBHLEFE &
N AR B R BT A g B KA 7] 215,520,000
RER% 1 R (B4 A7,075,000% T E A
12,688,000/% B% 17 7 6 3 88 M AR FEBIR A A
Bl BEITIRMEE -BRRMH ZFBOT :

A

g

Total number

of shares Aggregate
repurchased Purchase price per share consideration
Month A# BBERDAER BREEE BRE
Highest Lowest
BE R1E
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
January 2016 —T-RF—H 5,000,000 0.590 0.445 2,431,182
February 2016 —E-R"¥=H 2,488,000 0.490 0.485 1,217,840
March 2016 —ZT-RE¥=H 1,000,000 0.465 0.460 463,240
May 2016 —E-R¥HHA 4,200,000 0.420 0.405 1,748,160
December 2016 ZE-RE+=ZA 2,832,000 0.440 0.420 1,213,840
Total st 15,520,000 7,074,262

B EXPTEEIN A NRAE KA
EBARMERE BOXHEEFAARF LH

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed securities of the Company during the Year. FHHo
RESERVES #&
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the AKABIRAEBRAFEENREEEESFIE DR

Group during the Year are set out in note 42 to the financial ~ HR B BMERM T2 RiGEEREEHE -
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$505.10 million,
representing the share premium account of the Company
of approximately HK$1,312.15 million less the accumulated
losses as at 31 December 2016 of approximately HK$807.05
million. Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (as amended)
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 16.28% of the total sales for the Year and the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for 34.20% of
the Group's total sales for the Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted
to approximately 51.38% of the total purchases for the Year
and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
86.25% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Jianjun

Mr. Jiang Jiancheng
Mr. Ke Xionghan (appointed on 24 June 2016)

Mr. Li Jianging (retired on 24 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ho Wing Yan
Ms. Zhang Yujie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Mr. Li Xiaofeng

Mr. Ho Man Fai

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Jiang lJianjun, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ho
Man Fai will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The term of office for the executive directors is
the period up to their retirement in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association. The non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Ke Xionghan will retire and being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 37 to 40 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at any time during the Year or at the end of the
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENROREERONERR LA
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions RIE—RNFE+_A=+—H FFERELRQ
of the directors in the shares and underlying shares of the B EEEEE (T RBANEEIEN ([
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning & K HBE &) ) EXVER) B (D N A8 RE R 15 b 1
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the — AiZ4EREE N HI S 186 E352(68 E A D A
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by BYRGFEZEELAM  iBE EHHE M e+
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as sl FEsTAZEHITEELERS GV EESFL|
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (MfEE<FR| ) BRTMERNT MBS
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by R RAAENT

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAEAQBEBR Z2HRE:

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BEROYE HFORERLE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage of
beneficially Through controlled the Company'’s
owned spouse corporation Total  issued shares
EARRATF
o) ERTRGZ
Name of directors BN ERELRER ERERE ZERHEE @t BRE L
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRERE 242,460,000 5,840,000@  346,459,044® 594,759,044 12.73%
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR S 500,000 - - 500,000 0.01%
Mr. Ke Xionghan LB 5 A 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.02%
Mr. Li Xiaofeng REELE 500,000 - - 500,000 0.01%
Mr. Ho Man Fai 3B 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.04%
246,460,000 5,840,000 346,459,044 598,759,044 12.81%

Notes: P 5E -

(a) These 5,840,000 shares were held by Ms. Li Zhuoxun, the (a) 5%5,840,0000% f% 0 H T2 E e A A ER S
spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun. B THE-

(b) These 346,459,044 shares were held by King Wei Group (b) :%346,459,044 R R & B EE (h H)

(China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei") KREBREAERAA([KE| ) HBEREH
as to 253,259,044 shares and China Silver Investments WEBRRARELAT([EWR])DREAE
Development Limited (“China Silver”) as to 93,200,000 253,259,044% £93,200,0000% o f1 PN AL 48 &
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly owned ERMTREEREE2ERS Bt BRIEE
by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, Mr. Jiang Jianjun was deemed to be HNEAEER  TIEELRAWRAED FIRE
interested in the 253,259,044 shares held by King Wei and 48 #5 75 19253,259,044/% f% 7 KR ESRF A H
the 93,200,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by 93,200,000 P& P A fERS -

virtue of the SFO.

*  For identification purposes only * EBREF
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Long positions in share options of the Company: RELFBREZFE:
Number of
options directly
beneficially owned
BEEBEZEEZ
Name of directors BEEHS BREHE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TLET AL 4,760,000
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng VA E 5t 21,500,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan 1] 1 ) o 10,000,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan fAIEkRZ £ 2,000,000
Ms. Zhang Yujie NERZ L 10,000,000
Dr. Loke Yu B g I+ 2,500,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng Rkl S 2,500,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai R S A 2,000,000
55,260,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of B EXFIHEEEIIN R_ZT—X<F+ - A
the directors had registered an interest or short position in =+ — 8 & & S E R A D 7] 5 H (T o] 155
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of  SAE Z J&D R ABEIMDF - A RIEE S KL
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded — E 1§ 53521678 T a8k - kiR B F % ~F A A
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified ~ BTG ARG MBI 2 I SAR -

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ FTERREEMATRARG REBERG
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES e

At 31 December 2016, the following interests in shares or RZE—RNFE+_A=1+—H UTRAERQA
underlying shares of 5% or more of the issued shares of the 2R A B RE D sk B R AT {95 % 3k LA o fE
Company were recorded in the register of interests required HERENARNTIIEEB A5 N E (&M F336
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the EmMEENEREMmN:

SFO:
Long positions: HE:
Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
Capacity and or underlying the Company’s
Name nature of interest shares held issued shares
EFEEEBERDS HARQATERT
HE BB B RESEME HEROHE ROZBHLNBEDL
Beidahuang (HK) International Beneficial owner 660,000,000 14.13%
Trade Co., Limited
IR (BB EBRESZERAR EmBEEA
EEIEAERILLATEEER Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000@ 14.13%
BERETRFA S EE R
BRI AREEEERANT Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000@ 14.13%
SR B
Li Zhuoxun Beneficial owner 5,840,000 0.13%
L ER)) E=EAA
Interest of spouse 593,679,044® 12.71%
fic (5 1

68 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
Capacity and or underlying the Company’s
Name nature of interest shares held issued shares
BFEEEBERD HAEARSRIT
mE BB S REEME HEROEE ROZBABEIL
Able Turbo Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 225,783,474 4.83%
E=EAA
Interest of controlled corporation 154,396,526 3.31%
P EE s
Chen Hua Interest of controlled corporations 380,180,000@ 8.14%
Bk 2 P A E s
Li Xianggen Interest of controlled corporations 380,180,000@ 8.14%
MR P A E s
King Wei Group (China) Investment  Beneficial owner 253,259,044 5.42%
Development Limited
KEREE (PRHEKREER EnEAA
BRAHA
Notes: P&k

(a) These 660,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang (HK) (a) #%660,000,0000% f&% 15 B4 K5 (B8 ) BB

International Trade Co., Limited, which was wholly owned BESERARFE -LLAR (FB)BHEES
by BEIERZEILARHEEEBREML QA which in ERARABERTIEZBILAREEEEER
turn was wholly owned by BgE) Tt KFT BB EEA N A]. EARREZEHE MBEEIRBIARSE
Accordingly, each of B/ I BRI ANHELEERET EEEEREFAFAREILILRTRES
A7) and BETIATREEEBE B AT was deemed to HanmzEna BHit REEFLPE
be interested in the 660,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang GH BEIRBIATHESEBREM
(HK) International Trade Co., Limited by virtue of the SFO. NA N BETIATREREE AR YR

BRIEAR (BB BERESERAREFE
2660,000,0000% f& 17+ # A #E o

TELARELEERERERAT 609
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(b) These 593,679,044 shares and underlying shares were held
by Mr. lJiang Jianjun (“Mr. Jiang”), the spouse of Ms. Li
Zhuoxun, as to 242,460,000 shares and 4,760,000 share
options, King Wei Group (China) Investment Development
Limited (“King Wei"”) as to 253,259,044 shares and China
Silver Investments Development Limited (“China Silver”) as
to 93,200,000 shares. As King Wei and China Silver were
wholly owned by Mr. Jiang, Mr. Jiang was deemed to be
interested in the 253,259,044 shares held by King Wei and
the 93,200,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO. Accordingly, Ms. Li Zhuoxun was deemed
to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held
by Mr. Jiang, King Wei and China Silver by virtue of the SFO.

(@) These 154,396,526 shares were held by China Food and
Beverage Group Limited (“China Food”), which was wholly
owned by Able Turbo Enterprises Limited (“Able Turbo").
Accordingly, Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in the
154,396,526 shares held by China Food by virtue of the SFO.

(d) These 380,180,000 shares were held by Able Turbo as to
225,783,474 shares and China Food as to 154,396,526
shares. As China Food was wholly owned by Able Turbo,
Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in the 154,396,526
shares held by China Food by virtue of the SFO. As Able
Turbo was 60.31% owned by Mr. Chen Hua and 39.69%
owned by Mr. Li Xianggen, each of Mr. Chen Hua and Mr. Li
Xianggen was deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Able Turbo and China Food by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

*  For identification purposes only
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54593,679,0440% f% (h M AHEE IR H BRI EE
A (Ikh4E] ARSI ZITHRB)EE
242,460,000% % 17 %2.4,760,00017 5 I 4 -
KEEE (FEEEERBRAA (4
42 ) BE75253,259,044/% % 19 I FE SR = B %
EERERAMRAA* ([#R])H F93,200,000
REREn - BRI IERERR T AT 2 ERE
Bt RIEFAHERBEES T EERRAD
R R 4E 575 #9253,259,044R% % 10 K Z2 iR 45
B 1993,200,0000% % 1 A #E %S o Bt » 1R
BEHFRBEGD RE LT WG ARL
St E R ERFEORD RAABRD S
B -

154,396,526/ i 17 B H1 B B dn R mm 4R
BRAF([FERMIDFBFAE MAPEER
§h B Able Turbo Enterprises Limited ([Able
Turbo )2 EHEH ML - BEEHFLEE
16451 - Able Turbo® R &M Bl R m #5A &Y
154,396,526 I fn R HE B #45 »

5%380,180,000% i 17 B3 Able Turbo¥F &
225,783,474/ 2 B R fn% B 154,396,526
B e R E R @ Able Turbo2 B A » #
RIEES M HAE KD Able Turbotf 17 AR
Bl R G5B #154,396,526 8% i 1) o A 1
%o BN Able Turborh FREE 5L A H60.31%
2SR RZEAIR A EREB39.69% - IR
BEHFRBEGD RESERTARLTAE
EBWR AR Able TurbokHh R BEA D
BRI

B EXPAEEIN RZT—RFE+_A=+—
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME R

The Company operates a share option scheme (the ARATIHRAE—BERESSZ ([Z:18]) 5
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and EAERBEEARNEBFMEEERISES
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to, and HRENEFF FIZHEE) R IEE o %5 2R
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group. The —EF+EFERA = BEREY BIEC E
Scheme was adopted on 23 May 2007 and, unless otherwise M EREIT DRI B ZBRI0EN—H AL
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from WMo BB R E— S ER T EREN
that date. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 32N EE o

32 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company'’s TEBEEFRNKRITENARD T BEIGEE
share options outstanding during the Year:

Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Adjustment Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Exersice price/
Name or category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Adjusted
participant 2016 the Year® the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016 options®  share options exercise price®
RZB-RE RZB-RF BRE e/ S8%
SRELZNER -B-8 ERAEY AR ERfTE EREH ERXM TZEZt-R RUAHY BRECESD fTEEY
HKS per share
SRET
Directors
Ez
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 50,000 50,000 - - - - 100,000 23-07-14 23-07-15 - 22-07-17 0.754/0.377
IRERE 915,000 915,000 - - - - 1,830,000  24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
457,500 457,500 - - - - 915,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
457,500 457,500 - - - - 915,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
- - 400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,880,000 1,880,000 1,000,000 - - - 4,760,000
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.754/0.377
IRMEE 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - 5,000,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - 5,000,000  24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,250,000 10,250,000 1,000,000 - - - 21,500,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan - - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
AEBEE - - 3,000,000 - - - 3000000 14-10-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
= = 4,000,000 = - = 4,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
= - 10,000,000 = - - 10,000,000
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2016 &£ 3§




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Adjustment Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Exersice price/
Name or category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December share Exercise period of Adjusted
participant 2016 the Year" the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016 options?  share options exercise price®
RIB-XE RIB-XE BRE TEE/ S
SREEZNER -A-H FRHEY FRRH FRTE FREHE ERAM t=A=t-8 RHUAHY BRECED TEREY

HKS per share
GRET
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000  24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
[PElS 125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436

500,000 500,000 1,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Ms. Zhang Yujie - - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
NEARL - - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436

- - 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
Dr. Loke Yu 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000 23-07-14 23-07-15 - 22-07-17 0.754/0.377
BEMHEL 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000 24-07-15  24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436

750,000 750,000 1,000,000 - - - 2,500,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000 23-07-14 23-07-15 - 22-07-17 0.754/0.377
PREE 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000  24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436

750,000 750,000 1,000,000 - - - 2,500,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai 250,000 250,000 - - - - 500,000 24-07-15 24-07-15 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
WXBRE 125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
125,000 125,000 - - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436

500,000 500,000 1,000,000 - - - 2,000,000

14,630,000 14,630,000 26,000,000 - - - 55,260,000

72 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Adjustment Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Exersice price/
Name or category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Adjusted
participant 2016 the Year" the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016 options?  share options exercise price®
RIB-XE RIB-XE BRE e/ SR
SREEZHER -A-H FRERY  EREM FRTE FREHE EREXM t=A=t-8 RHUAHY BREGED k@Y
HKS per share
GRET
Ex-director?
HMESC
Mr. Li Jianging 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - (5,000,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
ZRERE 1,250,000 1,250,000 - - - (2,500,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
1,250,000 1,250,000 - - - (2,500,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) -
Other employees
HibfEs
In aggregate 1,000,000 1,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - - 23-07-14 23-07-14 - 22-07-16 0.754/0.377
B 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.754/0.377
2,050,000 2,050,000 - - - - 4,100,000  24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
1,025,000 1,025,000 - - - - 2,050,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
1,025,000 1,025,000 - - - - 2,050,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 17,250,000 - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 17,250,000 - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
7,100,000 7,100,000 57,500,000 (2,000,000) - - 69,700,000
Consultants
B
In aggregate 4,500,000 4,500,000 - (9,000,000) - - - 23-07-14 23-07-14 - 22-07-16 0.754/0.377
B 16,500,000 16,500,000 - - - - 33,000,000 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.754/0.377
85,000,000 85,000,000 - - - (120,000,000 50,000,000 ~ 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 2.060/1.030
42,500,000 42,500,000 - - - (60,000,000 25,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
42,500,000 42,500,000 - - - (60,000,000 25,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 2.060/1.030
- - 37,950,000 - - - 37,950,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 37,950,000 - - - 37,950,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
- - 50,600,000 - - - 50,600,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
191,000,000 191,000,000 126,500,000 (9,000,000) - (240,000,000) 259,500,000
217,730,000 217,730,000 210,000,000 (11,000,000 - (250,000,000 384,460,000
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the Year:

(a

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

Adjustment was made as a result of the bonus issue of
shares of the Company on the basis of one bonus share of
the Company for every one existing share of the Company
on 7 January 2016.

Mr. Li Jianging retired as an executive director of the
Company on 24 June 2016.

The closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted

FRRTT 0B AR D R P = -

(a)

BRENBBEHARRLABEESTEY
Fa R L

BEDEARAR =T <F—ALARS
HE—BARARERGEE —RCRZ 2
RATALRRATT (R o

FRERENZ—RFRAZTOARE

ARRIZPITEF

FA REEZERERTEERDRN AQ7K
W EAESR042EB T

during the Year was HK$0.42 per share.

FR REEZEREETEEDR  AQ7A
f&tn 2 hnigeFE B U E B EAR0.398 T

(e) The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares (e)
immediately before the date on which the share options
were exercised during the Year was HK$0.39 per share.

FR - ANEE B ERE R ER 427,851,000
T (ZZ— 4 80,287,000/ 7T °

The Group recognised a share option expense of
approximately HK$27,851,000 during the Year (2015:
HK$80,287,000).

EECAIFRMRLDERER XL ERER
HzEBE(ER-BEAMEEEHRLUAHE)

The directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the Year, calculated by using the binomial
option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

Theoretical
value of

Number of
options granted

Grantees during the Year share options
FRRH

AR A BREHE BREZREERE

HK$

BT
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TETERE 1,000,000 164,173
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR 1,000,000 164,173
Mr. Ke Xionghan o] HE ) 52 A 10,000,000 1,642,726
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Ak IR &+ 1,000,000 164,173
Ms. Zhang Yujie MERZE 10,000,000 1,642,726
Dr. Loke Yu B g ARiE 1,000,000 164,173
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BRI S A 1,000,000 164,173
Mr. Ho Man Fai A B & 1,000,000 164,173
Other employees HiES 57,500,000 9,275,752
Consultants A 126,500,000 20,767,835

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted
method of valuing options. The significant assumptions used
in the calculation of the values of the share options are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements. The measurement
dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on
which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number
of assumptions of the expected future performance input
to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model
itself. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables
used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of
an option.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the directors or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in note 37
to the financial statements.

During the Year, the Group's bank loan of HK$43,997,000
(2015: HK$54,910,000) was secured by properties held by
Linxianghuayin Properties Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (FRMEERE X EER AR AF]), a related party of
the Group, and guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng, directors of the Group, Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Ningxia West Bright
New Resource Technology Company Limited, Harbin China
Distillery Company Limited and the Company.
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t

HERSERERS

%

BB B BRI B MR M E37THE -

FA-AREEIRITE 43,997,000 7T (=
T—HF 54,910,000/ 7T ) ARRZEIR B %1%
BRRERAR (AEEMNBEEAL) IFEH
MIEERE THAEBEERTEELERT
BRGE BRHEREEREERBRAA
BERBAEEHERSTRMABRAR AE
EREBBEAR AT NRARBEER-
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Besides, during the Year, the Group paid HK$268,713
as rental to Guangzhou Tian Tian Friendship Co., Ltd.
("Guangzhou Tian Tian”) for the warehouse services in the
PRC. The Group also paid HK$70,140 as rental to Shenzhen
Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Jianlai”) for 2 office premises in
the PRC.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun (an executive director, the chairman and
a substantial shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng (an executive director of the Company) are
directors of Guangzhou Tian Tian.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng are shareholders of
Jianlai.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
above agreements were continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules. However,
since these continuing connected transactions were de
minimis transactions, they were exempted from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

Set out below is information in relation to connected
transactions which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements and are required under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules to be included in this annual report.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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On 13 May 2015, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (“Framework Agreement”) with Heilongjiang
Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd
(the “Supplier”) and its subsidiaries (the “Supplier Group”)
in relation to the supply of green and organic food products
including but not limited to corn, cooking oil, and cereals
and oils. The Supplier is the holding company of Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd. which is a substantial shareholder of
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution Limited (a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company). Thus, the
Supplier Group is a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Listing Rules.

Annual review of continuing connected transaction

The proposed annual cap for transactions contemplated
under the Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2016 is RMB950,000,000 as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2015.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

b) on normal commercial terms; and
Q) according to the agreement governing them on terms

that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company's auditor, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED, has been
engaged to report on the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor
has confirmed the above continuing connected transactions
as follows:

1. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

3. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above
have exceeded the annual cap made by the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2016, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

AUDITOR

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Subscription
announced on 1 November 2016, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and maintaining a high standard
of corporate social governance essential for creating a
framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating
a sustainable return to the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark
as well as the individual performance of employees. Share
options are granted to retain loyal employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to different levels of success.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills which includes seminars and workshops, updates on
regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the
Group. The Group complies with environmental legislation,
encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental protection awareness to all employees of the
Group.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to participating in community events
from time to time, and to the improvement of community
well-being and social services. The Group supports and
encourages staff to actively participate in a wide range of
charitable events outside working hours, to raise awareness
and concern for the community, and to inspire more people
to take part in serving the community.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior
management are delegated with the continuing responsibility
to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant
legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Jianjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wom & F OMOF OB A W A A

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To the members of CHINA BEIDAHUANG INDUSTRY
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
CHINA BEIDAHUANG INDUSTRY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 92 to 223, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B S

BREZER
BRREZEFRASRBERMNFEEALE R5Y
AHHE AV BHRRNERRASERNFH %
EEHRERMNERZEEBG AV BHRERMHNA
ERABETREN RMATEHZERHEER
BEBFER-

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HREZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMHWERNAEZER

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Y REHTE 2 7]

FOHARAMBRRMEIS

Refer to note 33 in the consolidated financial statements

In March 2016, the Group completed the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in Fujian Fang
Run Construction Group Company Limited and
Shenzhen Tronsin Illuminating Technique Limited
for a consideration of RMB50 million and RMB35
million respectively which are engaged in construction
business.

RZZE-—XREF=ZH EXEEIHIUAREBEARK
50,000,0007T f2 A R #35,000,0007T Se A U IB 1R 2 A
HERREEAR AR MRYITAILERAREER
RAZS1 %R BN FRRER -

In August 2016, the Group completed the acquisition
of 70% equity interest of A1 1L RBKEEEER A A
at a consideration of RMB46 million which is engaged
in tourism business.

RZE-—RFNA EEEUREBEAREK
46,000,000 T SEA U R LU T R KB B FR A R]Z
70%M%HE - Z R E IR

In October 2016, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest of &I T EMIKXEEEGR
2 A] which held 55% each of 3 Beijing subsidiaries at
a consideration of RMB48 million which are engaged
in renting of office premises.

RZE-—RFT+HA EEEUREBEARYK
48,000,000 e MR R YT R ANIRE R AR A A
Z100% A% - Z AR AR ERER S
R EARI® B Z55% 5 °

Our procedures in relation to the acquisitions
included:

BFIBERKE 2R

- evaluation of the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

- MBI INER G ER 2 EE - B R R B

- reviewing the appropriateness of the
acquisition accounting applied, including the
timing at which control was deemed to have
passed;

- WETERZWESHREZEE L  BREE
HARVE D iR 2 B

- reviewing and considering the appropriateness
of the fair values ascribed to assets and
liabilities of the acquired business; and

- A NERWBEKcEENBBRETZ
N EZEEN: &
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Key Audit Matter
HREZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMWERNAEZER

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

W rElR & 2 A ()

FOHAREMBRRMEII(E)

Refer to note 33 in the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Significant judgement has been exercised by
management in establishing the initial estimates of
the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed together with the goodwill
arising on acquisition in preparing their purchase
price allocation. The Group engaged an independent
external valuer to assist in the valuation of the
goodwill arising.
EEEREHMAEBR BN EENAEAGBZ
ARFEARRGREEABEEIRRWBMELEZS
B2 OHEFHRTEERA G BEEEEE -2
SZONEB A (B BT LA 15 BY &Y ik P A 2 P 2 o

- challenging the assumptions in the valuation

report supporting goodwill with the
independent external valuer.

- BBV MBI ERE RSB 2 A ERET

Z AR

We also considered the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
BPMERGEaMBRERMTFEREIELEHN A
B EE -
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMWERNMEZER

Gooawill
S

Refer to note 18 in the consolidated financial statements

BESHSEMKHRKRMETS

The Group has goodwill of HK$87 million relating to
the acquisitions of subsidiaries during the year.
EEERFAEERABEUBHBAR ZEE
87,000,000/% 7T °

On an annual basis, management are required to
perform an impairment assessment for goodwill,
these assessments involve signifiant management
judgment in the application of valuation models and
assumptions.

REREE BEEBARHEETREN G ZFNE
BREBEBRERMGERRX MBREIEL ZEKRH

B o

As a consequence, there is a greater risk of
misstatement in these balances, either by fraud or
error, including through the potential override of
controls by management.

Eitt ZE#EAKTPHRRFRER (BEEREEE
AIREE BT 2 ) FERA 2 Rt E kR

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill. This conclusion
was based on a value in use model that required
significant management judgment with respect to
the discount rate and the underlying cash flows, in
particular future revenue growth.

ERECE T MEAREREZRE ZEwmIIIRIE
FEARBERASLH EhPLERERYMEXLIA
B eRE (CHEARKRKRIER) EREAHE-

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

HMEBEEEEREN G ZEFEE:

- evaluation of the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

- MBI INER L ER 2 EE - B R BB

- assessing the valuation methodology in the
valuation report supporting goodwill with the
independent external valuer;

- BB SN ERD AT S R B 2 E RS T
ZEERE:

- challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

- REXFELRITEABERERBRESAE
M

- reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.

- W ASIRETFRE SN EZEE
NEEBZERERREAE -
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Key Audit Matter
HREZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMWERNAEZER

Other intangible assets

At #IE & E

BESHSEMBEHRERMET9

Refer to note 19 in the consolidated financial statements

Other intangible assets included trademarks and
contract.

HBELEERRRAENREL -

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the intangible assets.
This conclusion was based on a value-in-use
calculation with reference to a valuation performed
by an independent valuer that required significant
management judgment with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, in particular future
revenue growth.”

ERECHETMEABRBLEE ZRE- &%ﬁﬁ%
ZEMAGEMET 2 HMEREAEERFE -
$%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁwﬁﬁ@ﬁéﬁi(tﬂmi
M I8 ) 1F B R HI T -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

HPMEEEEEREN G ZEFERE:

- evaluation of the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

- AHEEM SN R ER 2 B - e R EBIE

- assessing the valuation methodology in the
valuation report supporting goodwill with the
independent external valuer;

- BE S SN (E AR AT S R B 2 i E RS T
ZAEERE:

- challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

- BREBEXEBRITEARE REAREBRRE
M

BRE:

- reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.

- YLt ABUR ST IRE  flSsEZ BE
NERZEREREEEE -
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMWERNMEZSER

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BREKZ Wa i

Refer to note 5 in the consolidated financial statements

FESREE M B RERMEES

For construction companies there is considerable
judgement in assessing the appropriate contract
revenue and margin to recognise.
MRBERFME R HEE S QKGR F
/R HETT K8 2T -

27) 40 AN
Rize

Revenue and margin are recognised based on the
stage of completion of individual contracts, calculated
on the proportion of total costs at the reporting date
compared to the estimated total costs of the contract.
Woas Mg & PME B & KR R e I BERR - IARRE B
B EEET & Q@R AR Z L HIEtH

This involves the assessment of the valuation of work
performed, the completeness and accuracy of forecast
costs to complete; and in turn the evaluation of the
related receivables and liabilities at each reporting
date.

WES T HETZHELE RS T TR INAE
BN RAEM T ERSRE B2 B EER
BREE

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition
included:

BB K SR 2T B!

- reviewed the terms and conditions of the
contracts involved and examined whether
the revenue and costs were recognized in
accordance to HKAS 11;

- EDS M2 B K 2 AR R AR I i & W s o X
AEERBEEFBEGTERE 1158 T AR

- validating the construction costs incurred to
date to estimated total costs of contracts; and

- MBEZSHFTANEREAZ BEFRBERSE:
M

- validating the estimated total costs of contracts
to the main sub-contractor agreements and
other supporting documents to assess the
appropriateness of the estimated costs of
contracts

- METZ0 BRI mE &AM S 2B E
WERAAT AT AR EARREE
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017

Chan Shek Chi
Practising Certificate number P05540
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOVIE
GREREREMEEBRARE

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—RF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Continuing operations BEKSEXEK
Revenue A 5 654,843 785,700
Cost of sales $HE AN (587,971) (775,079)
Gross profit E7 66,872 10,621
Other income and gains H A R Wz 5 51,359 99,612
Selling and distribution expenses $HE RO HA X (7.338) (14,236)
Administrative expenses TR X (100,513) (108,057)
Profit/(loss) from operation KESEF (B18) 10,380 (12,060)
Finance costs DN 7 (6,933) (10,115)
Share of profit of associates paK Ly /NIb | 1,380 2,113
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries — H &M B AR Z
(E518) Wz 34 (1,603) 624
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADRF, (EE) 6 3,224 (19,438)
Income tax credit/(expenses) Frie®idEe, (%) 10 5,353 (22,421)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 43548 4% & ¥ 1%
wm A (&) 8,577 (41,859)

Discontinued operations %ﬂ:@‘ﬁ Y
Profit from discontinued operations, IR CEAE

net of tax /mﬂ (BR#iE) 26 - 56,751
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR NEJE 5 F 8,577 14,892
Other comprehensive loss Hth2HEEE
ltems that may be reclassified HigrlgeEFHEE

subsequently to profit or loss: Bz IEE
Release of exchange differences upon & & A &) B & O]

disposal of subsidiaries PE 5 = &a (227) (5,339)
Exchange differences arising on BMERBINEBEEZ

translation of foreign operations MEH ZERE (93,652) (44,643)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFEE 2 HEBLEE (85,302) (35,090)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBRERkHEMZEBARE

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE_ZT—XRE+_-_A=1+—BLLFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: T3 EMAEF, (EE)
Owners of the parent BRRHEAA 7,217 19,412
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B 1,360 (4,520)
8,577 14,892
Total comprehensive (loss)/income T3 EEEME
attributable to: (B8) WAz :
Owners of the parent IS/NEIETZEN (85,326) (30,170)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = 24 (4,920)
(85,302) (35,090)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE B QR ERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BB ARG
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT gREF, (E8)
Basic and diluted EARR#E 12
From continuing and discontinued REFERKIEEE
operations EF HKO.15 centsi#fll  HKO.51 centsifll
From continuing operations RERBBECEER HKO.15 cents®fll  HK(0.98) centsiZ

TELAEEEERERERAT 93

2016 £




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEeBERRE
31 December 2016
—E-XRFEt+ZA=1+—H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt &E FHExT FHETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB M 13 84,801 66,761
Investment property KEME 14 97,448 88,370
Financial assets at fair value through FRERZATE
profit or loss YIRS REE 15 63,997 76,252
Loan receivables FEUE K 16 31,798 13,700
Rental deposit paid BENHEESES 17 20,592 -
Goodwill EES 18 90,098 3,169
Other intangible assets EmEEEE 19 136,863 2,271
Interests in associates REE N F) 2 HEam 20 322,684 276,276
Total non-current assets EMEEERE 848,281 526,799
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 23,273 28,676
Trade receivables U E Z R 22 35,582 11,835
Amounts due from contract customers JEU A # & F 1A 23 78,707 -
Prepayments, deposits and other FBRHIE ZE& K
receivables H b fE U IR 24 266,080 205,852
Due from non-controlling shareholders & Y[} B A &) 3E 12 I
of subsidiaries % B8 #k 18 132 14,100
Due from related parties JEUL g A £ FIE 37 4,497 41,346
Loan receivables FEWE K 16 50,644 23,305
Pledged deposits EEFFR 25 6,700 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESFEY 25 62,539 363,300
Total current assets MEEERE 528,154 688,414
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BR K 27 120,016 5,708
Other payables and accruals HmENRIBREGTER 28 149,115 57,500
Interest-bearing bank and other RITREAMETSEE
borrowings 29 83,837 105,643
Due to related parties FEHREE A T FIE 37 = 12,781
Tax payable JE 1~ ¢ 18 1,801 288
Total current liabilities BB BB 354,769 181,920
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 173,385 506,494
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBAS
LIABILITIES 1,021,666 1,033,293

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI &

31 December 2016
—E-RE+-A=1+—H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIBEEE 30 42,109 21,495
Total non-current liabilities EREBBERTE 42,109 21,495
Net assets BEFE 979,557 1,011,798
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BRAREEABMLER
the parent
Share capital AR A< 31 467,160 233,664
Reserves ] 458,265 773,188
925,425 1,006,852
Non-controlling interests FEERERS 54,132 4,946
Total equity e AR RKE 979,557 1,011,798
Jiang Jianjun TEE Jiang Jiancheng TR
Director o Director 4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERRSHR

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE_ZT— 7T _A=1+—HBIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SATREARE
Share Share  Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond Warrant Merger  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
TR ARER EXkE
BRTRA  ROEEER  BRERE RERE #E ARREE B 2iER Mt FERER | -

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 T TR TR TR TR TR T TEL TiEn Tign Tién

At 1 January 2015 W=F-7%-F-R 162,669 920,424 9,421 19968 - (535) 3,060 (821,219) 293,788 4115 297,903
Profitloss)for the year FRER/ (B8 - - - - - - - 19412 19412 (4,520 14,892
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ FEE 2 E

for the year: WA/ (B8)
Release of exchange differences upon K EHBATREE

disposal of subsidiaries EiEE - - - - - - (5339) - (5339) - (5339)
Exchange differences on translation ~ EFHEBEL L

of foreign operations EiEE - - - - - - (44.243) - (44.243) (400) (44,643)

Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ FE2ERA/ (118)

for the year ot - - - - - - (49,582) 19,412 (30,170) (4,920) (35,090)
Conversion of convertible bonds HATARES 31 12,800 88,943 - (19,968) - - - - 81,775 - 81,775
Issue of share by allotment EREEMETRG 31 33,980 372,709 - - - - - - 406,689 - 406,689
Exercise of share option fBRE 6215 55,480 (15,012) - - - - - 46,683 - 46,683
Issue of warrants EARER - - - - 1,800 - - - 1,800 - 1,800
Exercise of warrants AERRER 18,000 109,800 - - (1,800) - - - 126,000 - 126,000
Acquisition of subsidiary KEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 5,751 5,751
Equity-settled share option REEERRERY

arrangements 32 - - 80,287 - - - - - 80,287 - 80,287
Transfer of share option reserve upon 7 BB 1 5K A

the lapse of share options BEREREER - - (1,449) - - - - 1449 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F

+-A=+-8 233,664 1,547,356* 73,247* - - (535)% (46,522)* (800,358)* 1,006,852 4,946 1,011,798
At 1 January 2016 W=F-7"5-F-R 233,664 1,547,356 73,241 = = (535) (46,522) (800,358) 1,006,852 4,946 1,011,798
Profit{loss) for the year FEEH/ (B8) - - - - - - - 1217 7217 1360 8577
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ FEE 2 E
for the year: WA/ (B18)
Release of exchange differences upon  HEHB R AR EE

disposal of subsidiaries 331 - - - - = o (116) - (116) (1) (227)
Exchange differences on translation ~ REEHEBEL L

of foreign operations 331 - - - - = o (92,427) - (92,427) (1,225) (93,652)

Total comprehensive incomelfloss) £ E2EMA/ (B18)

for the year k| = = = - - - (92,543) 1217 (85.326) yzi (85,302)
Issue of share by bonus issue BRARETAEARG 3 233,664 (233,664) - - - - - - - - -
Bxercise of share option TiEiERE 1,100 3,047 - - - - - - 4147 - 4147
Repurchase of shares EERR (1,268) (8,591 - - - - - - (5,859) - (5,859)
Acquisition of subsidiary WEMBRA - - - - - - - - - 46,613 46,613
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR - - - - - - - - - 2509 2,549
Equity-settled share option RigLERRERE

arrangements 32 - - 27,851 - - - - - 21,851 - 21,851
Transfer of share option reserve upon 1 B B i 53

the lapse of share options ERREREER - - (49,352) - - - - 1,112 (22,240) - (22,240)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RF

+-B=t+-8 467,160 1,312,148* 51,746* - - (535)* (139,065)* (766,029)* 925,425 54,132 979,557
J These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERBEEREBEREEMBHFRAR 2L
of HK$458,265,000 (2015: HK$773,188,000) in the & % 1#458,265,0008 T (ZZE — R F:
consolidated statement of financial position. 773,188,000/ 7T ) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2016
NET-_A=Z+—HItFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FET FHET
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM RETEMBRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADEF, (EE)
From continuing operations REAFELEET 3,224 (19,438)
From a discontinued operations RERIEEEHET = 56,751
Adjustments for: AT
Finance costs ELE=ID N 7 6,933 7,091
Share of profit of associates DR N B Y A (1,380) (2,113)
Bank interest income RITF B U A 5 (135) (105)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE BE X
property, plant and equipment REBHEEZ
B (W) 6 65 (18)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEMBRRZ
subsidiaries FEER (M) 34 1,603 (57,480)
Depreciation e 13 9,213 4,797
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT + 3 78 & i 4F
payments - 195
Amortisation of other intangible assets  E b #2 2 & = # §5 19 1,982 145
Fair value change on investment KEWMEZ
properties NEEEE) 14 (15,470) (53,299)
Fair value change on FERBEmEATE
financial assets at fair value PR e & E
through profit or loss ZAFEEZD 20,978 (34,592)
Imputed interest HEFE 7 = 3,024
Reversal of provision for inventories FEREHED 6 (998) (315)
Equity-settled share option expense PR 45 B R AR R B S 32 27,851 80,287
Lapse of share option A AR 2R R (22,240) -
31,626 (15,070)
Decrease in inventories FERD 30,378 7,965
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 AR FRIE N (1,150) (2,635)
Increase in amounts due from FEU & £ P I N
contract customers (78,707) -
Decrease in prepayments, FERHIE - HE K
deposits and other receivables H b e W ERIE R A 34,127 29,888
Increase in loan receivables JE W & FRIE AN (45,437) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFRIE N,
ORA) 107,662 (3,541)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables — Hh T 7B K B+ & A
and accruals CRA) /& m (3.663) 34,987
Cash generated from operations KREEBFBRE 74,836 51,594
Tax paid EATIA (1,255) (5,176)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE-FT—~FT_A=t—AILEE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Net cash generated from KEEEMBHEFE
operating activities 73,581 46,418
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM REZTHFBRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received EUERTTH B 135 105
Purchases of items of property, BEMX WENEEEER
plant and equipment (25,157) (69,583)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BE MEREEE
property, plant and equipment P15 K18 1 31
Purchases of investment property BEREME - (24,385)
Purchases of financial assets BEABRBERZATE
at fair value through profit or loss RS RMEE (12,703) (41,660)
Loans to customers MEFPREER - (37,005)
Net cash outflow arising on WENBAREE 2
acquisition of a subsidiary e F5E (203,160) (2,439)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HENBARZES
disposal of subsidiaries CGRE)/RAFRE 34 (94) 50,640
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition  Us B& B & N RIE £ 1)
of associates Bemt F5E (52,538) (237,427)
Capital contribution to a subsidiary by —FE1% B %5 /) — R
a non-controlling interests MEAGNTE - 5,945
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FEU, (FEST) BAE A+
from/(to) related parties MR () 24,068 (24,430)
(Increase)/decrease in advances to BT T E QR FE
associates 2 (), md (10,251) 47,445
Net cash flows used in investing & EB T
activities HEREFHE (279,699) (332,763)
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM RMETHRERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS 3K 1E 31 - 406,689
Proceeds from exercise of TR EFTIS 5RIE
shares options 4,147 46,683
Proceed from issue of warrants BITRREEFTIS B - 127,800
Repurchase of shares B Bl ik 1n (5,859) -
New bank and other borrowings BRI REMES 83,837 105,643
Repayment of bank and BEEBRTREMEE
other borrowings (105,643) (61,216)
Increase in bills payable AL Pl 6,700 —
Deposits pledged to bank ERTRITZFR (6,700) -
Interest paid BFE (6,933) (12,997)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated MEES (FTA) /13
from financing activities Ben= %8 (30,451) 612,602
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBERER
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE_ZT—XRE+_A=1+—BLLFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FTAT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRkBAEESEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) /B (236,569) 326,257
Cash and cash equivalents FYMBRe LB SEY
at beginning of year 363,300 79,167
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEE RSB R BT
changes, net (64,192) (42,124)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRONBESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 62,539 363,300
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BEeRELSZEYEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oA
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RErE B BIRARZEN 2
in the consolidated statement of BekBE2EED
financial position 25 62,539 363,300
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HERM T

31 December 2016
—E-XRFEt+ZA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. RATAER
China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited is PEIEAREXEBRZERERAAA
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman —EAERERFESEMKIIZBERAR
Islands. The registered address of the Company is P.O. X A R AL A P.O. Box 309, Ugland
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of Cayman Islands ° B+ Z& ¥ AHE
business is Unit 1302B, 13/F East Ocean Centre, 98 FUBER D MNsE Bk & 38985k R /G R
Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. [x131E1302B= ©
The Company is an investment holding company. The KRR A —EREZERAT  ENBA
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note A E B XEBHNIBRERM T4 -
41 to the financial statements.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEE
These consolidated financial statements have been I EREMBRERDBBEE SR
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial g ([BEAQFMAT)BHHNESH
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include BmEER ([BAEMBHREER]) (8
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, BREEBUBmELEDN BEGTE
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Al(IEBE R R2E) BER
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of ReEFt R REBERTHEOIRRERTE
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting mEMK-BRETERIARKEDE
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and TR A FEYIERIN b EB B mEK TR
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong BRELKAERR  WLABTES M
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared BREEEBEEN FIEHERNERA
under the historical cost convention, except for certain ExEizTME-

financial instruments and investment properties are
stated at their fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation mEER%E

The consolidated financial statements include REMBBERBERAATREWERAR
the financial statements of the Company and its (ZBIAERDEE_ZT—RF+=
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) A=+—BIEFENTBEREX -MELQ
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The A B mA N RRIFEAR QAR
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared WER—HEHERER -MBRATNE
for the same reporting period as the C